NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 89" Annual General
Mesling &f the membsrs of Amrit Carp. Limited will
be held at Chaudhary Bhavan (Near Jain Mandir, E
Block, Kavwi Nagar, Ghaziabad-201 002 (U.P.) on
Tueaday, the 28" September, 2010 at i1.00 a.m. to
iransact the following buginess :

URGINARY BUSINESS

1. To receive, cansidar and adopt the audited
Balancs Sheet of the Company as at 31~
March, 2010 and the Profil & Loss Account for
the year endad an that date together with the
reporis of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon.

To declare dividend on the Equily Sharas,

3. To appoint a Direciar in place of Shrl G.N_Mahra.
who ratiras by ratation and being 2llgible, offers
himself for re-appointment,

4. To appoinl & Directer in place of Shri Romesh
Laf, who retires by rotation and being eligibis,
otfers himself for re-appointment.

5. Te appoint a Director in place of Shri A.K.Bajaj,
whao retires by rotation and being eligible, offers
himsalt for ra-appointment.

6. To appoint Auditors to hold oHice trom the
concluslon of this meeting until the conctusian
of nexl Annual General Meeting and ta fix their
remuneration,

SPECIAL BUSINESS

7. To consider and if thought fit, 1o pass with or
withaul medifications. the following resalution
as SPECIAL RESOLUTION:

“RESQLYED that pursuanl to the provisions of
Saections 198, 269, 309 & 311 read with Schedule
XN and other applicable pravigions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 1956 {including any statutory
modifleation or re-enactmeant therac!, for tha time
being in force} and subject to such other
approvals, if and as may be required, the consant
and approval of the Company be and is hereby
actorded to the appeintment of Shri A.K.Bajaj
as Managing Director of the Company w.af 1
July, 2010 for a perlod of three yaars on the
remuneration and other tarms & conditions, as
set out in the Explanatory Statermaent annexed
herghs.

RESOLVED FURTHER that pursuant to Saction
188 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Acl, 1956, the remunaration by way
of salary and perguisites as sat out in the
annexed Explanatory Statement ba paid as
minimum remunaralion ta Shn A.K Bajaj or such
minimum remuneration as permissible in
Sehedule X1l to the Companies Acl, 1356
notwithstanding that in any financial year of the
Company during his 1enure as Managing
Directar, the Company has made no profits or
profits are inadequate.

RESOLVED FURTHER that the Board of Direcrors
Remuneration Committee be and are hareby
authorised Lo alter or vary the terms of
appointment of Shri A.K.Bajaj, including relating
la remuneration, as itmay, at its diserstion, deem
fit trom time to lima, 50 as not 1o excesd the
limits specified in Schedule Xl 1o the
Companies Act, 1956 {including any statutory
medification or re-snactment thareof for the time
being in force) or any amendments made

therata”™
By Order of 1ha Board
For AMRIT CORF.LTD.
CERTIFIED TRUE COPY
Regd. OMice:
CM28-C, 15t Floar, P K.Das

Gagan Enclave, Company Secrelary
Armiril Magar, GT.

Ghagziabad-201 ngfﬁ.‘pﬁMRlT
Dated : July 24, 2010 :
MNOTES:

1. Explanatory Staterment as reguirad under Section
173(2) of the Companies Act, 1958 is annaxed.

2. AMEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VO TE
AT THE MEETING IS5 ENTITLED TO ARPPOINT A
FROXY TO ATTEND AND ON A POLL TO YOTE
INSTEAD OF HIMSELF, THE PROXY NEED NOT
BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. A BLANK
FORM OF FROXY IS ENCLOSED AMD IF
INTENDED TO BE USED, IT SHOULD BE
DEFCSITED DULY COMPLETED AT THE
HEGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT
LESS THAN FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE
THE SCHEGULED TIME OF THE MEETING.
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Information required under Clause 48 (VG
of the Listing Agresment {ralating 1o Corporate
Govarnance) with respect to the Directors retiing
by rotation and, haeing aligite, saaking re-
appaintmant s givan in tha Corporaie
Gavernanca Report annexad 1o this Annual
Raport.

The Ragistara ol Mambers and Share Transfer
Books of the Company will rémain clased from
Monday, the 20" Saptembar, 2010 1o Tussday,
the 2B1h Septembar, 2010 (bath days inclugiva).

The diidend for tha year 2009-10 on the equity
sharps wlll be paid 10 those mambears whose
names appear in the RAagistar ol Mambars of
the Company 28 on 28" September, 2010, In
respect of shares held in elactronic form, the
dividend will be paid on the basis of beneflclal
ownership position as at the and of the day on
19" Septembar, 2010 as per data 1 be furnished
by Natlonal Securities Depository Limited
(NSDL) and Ceantral Depository Services {India)
Limitact {CRSL) for thiz purpose,

Shareholdars of ihe Company are informed that
pursuant to the provisions of Section 2060 of
tha Companies Act, 1956, tha amoun of dividend
which reamalns unpaid/unclaimed for a pericd
ol 7 years would be transfarrad to the 'Investor
Education & Pratection Fund® canstituted by the
Cantral Govt. Shareholdars who have not
pncashed thair dividend warmant{s} for the years
2004-2006, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2007-08 and
2008-0% are requested to make claim with the
Company immediataly as ne-claim shall lie
againgt the Fund or the Company in respsect of
indivicual amount once credited to the said Fund,

Marmbiers holding shares in physical form are
requestad te intimate immediately to tha
Registrars & Share Transfar Agents of the
Compainy, M= MAS Sarvigas Lid. | T-34, 2 Fioor,
Okhla Indusivial Arga, Phase-1l, New Celhi-110
020 gquating registared Folio Mo, {a) details of
thair bank accountichangs in bank accourt, if
any, to enable the Company 1o print these details
on the dividend warrants; and (&} changs in their
addrass, it any, with pin cods number. The
following information fo be incorporated on the
dividend warrants may be furnishad ;

12.

it Name of SolefFirst joint holdar and tha folio
number, ’

il Particulzrs of Bank Account, viz.
(a) Mame of the Bank
(k] Marne of the Branch

(£ Complete gddress of the Bank with Pin
Code number

(d) Bank Account Mumber allotted by the
Bank and naturg of the Accaum
{Savings/Current ete.)

In terms of Secticn 1094 of the Companles Act,
1956, the shareholdars of the Company may
nominate 2 person on whom the shares held by
him/them shall vestin the avent of his/their death.
Shareholders desirous of availing this facllity
may submit nomination in Form 2B,

The Company has entarad into agreements with
CD5L and WSDL fo offer deposiiory sarvices to
the Shareholders. Sharaholdars can open
account with any of the depositary panicigants
registerad with CDSL and NSDL.

. Any member requiring furthar infarmation on the

Accounts at the meeling is requestad to send
the queries in writing o the Campany Seacretary
by 15™ September, 20H0.

Members are requasted 1o bring their copies of
Annual Report al the meeling, as oxtra copies
will nat be supplied.

Pursuant to the requirement of the listing
agreement, tha Company daclargs thatits equity
shares are listed on the stock exchanges at
Mumbai and Kanpur. The Company has paid
the annual listing fea for the year 2090-11 to both
the above stock exchanges.

. In respect of the matters peraining ¢ Bank

detzils, ECS mandales, nomination, power of
attorngy, change in name/addrass alg., the
members are requasted to approach the
{Company's Registrars & Share Transfer Agents,
in raspecl of shares held in physical form and
the respective Dapasitary Participants, in case
of sharas held in &lec¢tranic form.  In all
corraspondence with the Company/Registrars
& Share Tranafer Agents, members are
reguested i quote thalr accountfolio numbers
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or OP I0 and Client 10 for physical or alectranic
heldings respectively,

Only ragistered mambers carrying the
atlendance slips and the holders of valid proxies
ragistarat with the Sompany will be permitted
to attend the mesting.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TOQ
SECTION 173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

Ram Ho, T

Shri A.K.Bajaj was re-appointad as Managing
Director of the Company for a pericd of 3 years
with eftect from 17 July, 2007 as approved by the
shareholders by Special Resolution at the
Annual Genaral Meeting of the Company held
on 27" September, 2007

In accordance with the pravizions of the
Schedule Xl of the Companies Agt, 1955, the
companies having no profit or inadequale profit
ara permitted to pay refunération on 2 graded
scale based on the affective capital upto a
maximum of A5 48 lacs per annum or Rs.4 lac
p.m. subject 16 cartain conditions including
approval of sueh remuneration by the
Remuneration Committee and the approval of
the shareholders by way of special resolution
for a pericd not excaading threa yoars,

The net profit af our Company for the year
2009-10 as computed under Section 244
of the Companias Act, 1856 (i.e. for the
purpese of managerial remuneration) was
Rs. 3,28,75 458/- lacs a5 per the Profit & Loss
Account for 2009-10, which means that wa can
pay up la Rs. 16,43,773/- tacs, being 5% of the
profit, as ramungration to the Managing Qirector
in & financial yaar, which is less than the existing
remuneration of the Managing Director.
Aecordingly, the Remuneration Committee of the
Directors as well as the Board of Directors have,
in their separate® meetings held on 24% July,
2010, approved the re-appointment and paymest
of rermuneration te Shi A.K. Bajaj as Managing
Dirsctor in accordance with ihe provisigns of
Schadule Xl of the Companies Act, 1956 w.a f.
1* July, 210 for 2 period of three years az given
hersunder:

(1) Salary

Salary @ 1,60,000/- per month in the grade
of Rs.1 40,000 - 20,000 - 2,00,000.

(2) Perquisites and allowances

i)

i)

iv)

The Managing Director shall also be
anlitied 12 perquisites and allowances
like: furmnishad accommodation or house
rent allowance in lieu thereo! subject
1o a eglling of 60% of the salary, hoyse
malntenance allowance together with
telmbursement of expenses or
allowances for utilities such as gas,
alactricity, water, furnishings, repairs,
sarvants' salaries, medical
ralmbursement for self and depandent
family, medical accident/Keayman
Inaurancs, leave travel concession for
salt and family, club membesrghip
aubjact to maximum of two clubs; such
parguisites and allowances will ba
restricled to an amaunt equal to 75%
ot the annual salary.

For the purposae of calculating the above
¢ailing, perquisites and azllowances
shali be evaluated as per the Income-
tax Rules, wherever applicable. In the
absence ot such Rules, parquisites
and allowances shall be svaluated at
actual cost,

Provision lor use of Company's car for
official duties and telephone at
residence shall ned be included in the
computation of perquisites and
gllowances for the purpose of
calculating the said ceiling. Parsonai
Ipng distance calls onh telephone and
use of car for parsonal purposes shall
ke billed by the Company.

Company's contributtan to Providant
Fund and Superannuation Fund or
Annuity Fund b the extent these either
singly or togather are nol laxable undar
the Income Tax Act, Gratuity payable as
per the Rules of the Company and
encaahment of leave at the end of the
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tenura shall not te inclugded in the
compulation of limie far the
remuneratlon or perquisitas aforesaid.

(3} Commiasion

Such remuneration by way of commissian
In addition to the salary, perquisites and
allowances subjact to a ceiling of 50% of
the annual salary calculated with reference
tothe net profit of the Company in a particular
financiai year as may be delarmined by the
Board of Diractors at the and of gach
financial year subject to the overall ceilings
as stipulated in the Sections 198 and 309
of the Companies Act, 195&.

{4} Shri A.K.Bajaj will not be entitled to sitting
fees for attending meeting of the Board or
Committaa{s) thareof.

The special resclution set oyt in em No7
is intended to obtain approval of the
membears o the appeintment and paymen
of remunaration to Shrl A K, Bajaj as the
Managing UOCirector and the Board
recommends the acceptance therao!.

The sxplanalory statament and the
resolutlon At items No. 7 of the Notice is
and may ba ireated as an abstract of the
terms and memorandurm of interast

pursuant 1o the provislons of Section 302 of
the Companies Act, 1956,

Shri A.K. Bajaj is interested or concerned in
the proposad resolution. Shri M.K.Bajaj and
Shrit V.K.Bajaj, being related bo Shri A.K Bajaj,
may also ba deemad to be interested |n the
said resoluticn. Nona of the other Direclars
of the Company is concemed or interested
in the resolution,

The tarms of remuneration of Shri & K Bajaj
has the approval of the BRemunaration
Comimittes constituted by the Board.

The General Information as required
pursuant to tha provisions of Schedule XN
of tha Companies A¢t, 1956 is containad in
the statement annexad hereto (Annaxure-1).

CERTIFIED TRUE (0PY By Crder of the Board

For AMRIT CORP. LTD.
For AMRIT CQJ :

Ragd. Office;
CM2B-C, 15t Floor,
Gagan Enclave,
Amrit Nagar, G.T. Road,
Ghazlabad-201 009 (LL.F)

Dated - July 24, 2010

CompatySecRtbys
Company Sacratary
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Annexura-1 raferrad to in the Explanatory Statemant

STATEMENT CONTAINING THE INFORMATION AS REQLHRED PER NOTIFICATION NO.G.S.R.36(E) DATED
JARUARY 16, 2002 {ie. PART || B OF SCHEDIULE Xifj IN RESPECT OF SHRAI A.K.BAJAJ, MANAGING DIRECTOR

L GENERAL MFORMATION

{n

{2)

(3)

(5)

(€)

Matire of Indusiry;

The Company manufactures and markets dairy milk & milk products and deals & develops propertias/
raal asiate.

Date or axpected date of commencemant of commeraial production:

The Company is an established company and the commercial production at its firat fastory at
Ghaziabad commanced in the year 1941, :

In case of new companias, expected date of commencamanl of activitias as par project approved by
tinancial institutions appearing in the prospectus:

Mot applicable.
Financial parformance:

{Rs.lacs)
2005.06 | 2006.07 | 2007-08 2008.08 | 2008-10

Gross Sales Turnover 48,125 2447 2,537 3,138 3,375
Nel Profif{iLoss) before 352z 1,141 434 524 h2a
tnterest, Dapraciation & Tax

Mst Profit as par 1,461 T16.9% 150 275 260
Profit & Loss Accoaunt

Amount of dividend paid 195 81 48.20 45,20 54,27 64.27

Rate of dividend declarsd
~Equity 15% 15% 15% 20% 20%:
=Prafarance "15% - - - -

“Ingarim dividand

Note; The rasults for the years 20068-07 and erwards are excluding paper & sdible oil businessas which have
bean translemed to M's ABC Paper Lid. and M Amnl Banaspati Co. Lid. undar the Schema ol Arrangemant.

Export parformanca and nat foreign exchangs collaborations:

The Cornpany has no export sales ner does the Company have any fareign exchange collaborations.
Faraign investments or collaborators. if any:

The Company does not have any foreign investments or collaborators.

P INFORMATICN ABOUT SHRI A.K.BAJAJ, MANAGING DIRECTOR

il

Background details:

&hri A.K.Bajaj, aged 48 years, has graduated in Science from Delhi LUiniversity. Shri Bajaj joinad the
Company in 1ha year 1884 as Chief Executive and was appeinted as Joint Managing Director on
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{ii}

{iii

-

v

()

01.08.1982. He was designated as
Managing Direstor w.e.l. 159 08,2003 and
has been continuing as Managing Direciar
since then. Shri A.K.Baje] was the Managlng
Directar of erstwhile Amrit Protein Foods
Ltd. batore its merger with the Company in
the yaar 1992,

Fast remuneration drawn:

Year Amount (R3.)
2007-08 29 02 886/-
2008-0% 29,94,319/-
- 20089-10 29,99 425¢-

Hola: ContHbutions 1o Provident Fund, Supsrannuation
Furwd andl Gratuity Fund are excluded from the
Abr0ve remuneration.

Jop proflie and suitability:

Shrl A.K.Baja] has been inslrumantal in
diversitying the oparations of the Company
into dairy business and real estate
business. He astabllshed state-of-the art
facility for processaing of UHT milk and other
mitk based products. He is alsg assisting
the Chairman & Managing Director in
various other corporate mathars,

Remuneration proposed

Salary 1,60.900/- in the grady of
1,40,000-20,000-2,00.000

Parquis/tes Up to 75% of salany

& allowancas

Commission Up to 50% af tha annual

salary within the shipulated
limits under the Companies
Act, 1858

Comparative remunaration protile with
respact to industry:

Taking into consideration 1he size of the
Company, the ramuneration drawn by him
in the past, the profile of Shri A.K.Bajaj and
the responsgikilities shoutdared by him, tha
afaresaid remunseration package is
commensurate with the ramunsration
package paid to managerial positions in
ofhar companies.

Pecunlary relationship directly or indirectly
with the Company or relationship with the
managerial parsonnel, if any:

Besides the remunerailon proposed, the
Managing Directors does not have any othar

pecuniary relationship with the Company,
Shrl N.K.Bajaj, Chairman & Managing
Director and Shri YK, Bajaj, Director, being
father and brother respectivaly of Shri
A, K.Bajaj, are related ko aach ather,

W QTHER INFORMATION

{13

{2

Reasons of loss or inadequate profits:

The Company has been profitabia for the
last many years, However, under 1he
Schame of Arrangement, major businassas
of the Company l.e. the paper business has
baan transterred bt and vested in ABC Paper
Ltd. and .the edible oils & FMCG
commodities  businegss  has  bean
demerged and consolidated with Amrit
Enterprises Ltd. {now "Amrit Banaspali
Co.Ltd."y. Tha Company, therefors, has been
left with the feod business and the real
astate busingss, which have low volumes
and profitatylity. The siza and the profitatlity
of the Company reduced to a large extent
eftar the implementation of the Scheme of
Arrangament,

Steps takan or proposed 1o be taken for
improvarment:

Tha Company has added another business
activity to its portiolic i.e. providing sirategic
business advlsory and BPO related servicss
tn the Group Companies and othars, which
is being strengthered further. Congequently,
the profitability of the Company will imprave
in the coming peariod.

Expacted ingrease in praductivity and proiits
in maasurable larms:

The financial performance of the Company
will improve with the renewsd focus on the
real satale business and business advisory
and BP0 related sarvices, Furthar, the
incraasad productivity in the Food business
is expected to further add to the profitability
of the Company |n the current year,

By Order of the Board
For AMRIT CORP.LTD.

Ragd. Office:

CM/28-C, 15t Floor,
Gagan Enclave,

Amrit Magar, GT. Road,
Ghaziabad-201 009 (L.P)

P.K.Das
Company Sacretary

Dated : July 24, 2010

Amrit Carp, Unidted



DIRECTORS' REPORT

To the Membera,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 69" Annual Report on the business and oparations of tha
Company together wilh Audited Statemani of Agcounts of your Company far the financlal year ended

31st March, 2010,
FINAKCIAL RESULTS

The summarized financial results of the Company 1or the year 2008-10 are given heraunder:

Salas & other inceme
Oparating Profit (EBIDTA)
intarest
Gross Profit (PBD)
Depreciation
Profit hefore tax [PBT)
Provisian for
~ Cyrrent Tax {Including wealth tax)
- FBT
— Defarred Tax
Met Profit
Adjustmants relating to previcus yaars
— Tax adjustmant
— Depreciation written back
Meat profit after previous years' adjustments
Balance brought tarward from pravious yaar
Profit aveilable for appropriation

Appropriations -

- Froposed dividend con equity shares
- Tax on dividend

- Transter to General Raserve
Balance carried to Balance Sheet

(As. In lacs)

2009-10 2008-09
3,855.38 356375
S22.85 62401
107.27 88.66
41548 535.35
114.78 123.06
295.7D 41228
34.90 35.78

- a.60

1.81 5.40
250.1% 381.42

- B83.48

{0.37) (e.o1)
280.50 277.95
0k82 1,162.86
1,555.48 1,470.81
G427 6427
_10.87 10.82
200.00 40000
989,24 §95.62

DIVIDEND COPERATIONS

-
Yaur Diractors are pleasad 1o recommend dividend
@ As. 2.00 per ghare {i.e.20%) on the Equity Shares
of R 10/~ each tar the year ended 31* March, 2010,
sama as in the previous year.

Durirg tha yaar under ravigw, the sales and ather
income of your Company increased o Hs.
3,855 34 |laes fram Rs. 3,583.75 lacs in the
pravious year, recording a growth of over 7%.
The opearating profit {EBIDTA), howewver,
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dectaased by 18.21% from Hs. 524.01 lacs to
Hs 522.85 lacs, The net profit after tax for the
currant year (aftar prior pericg atliustmants) is
Rs. 259.56 lags as against Rs.277.95 lacs in
lhe previous year, The main reasons for the Ty
prefitability is real estate segment where thare
ware no operations during Ihe year:

< The production of dairy milk & milk products
during the year was 8,567 KL as against 7,605
KL in the previous yoar rapresenting a growth of
12.63%. Frash Cream and lee-Cream Mix
launched last year posted good growth. Tha
increase in raw mateacal prices and gthar inputs
costs led to frequent price ravisions which,
consequently, impacted growth, The profitabifity
af the Dairy Division wes impacted as incraase
in the inputs prices was vary sharp and the gap
could not be fully bridged by Increase in product
prices. The Dairy Oivigion is laying spacial thrust
on organized retail and institutional clients, like
McQianald's, Mother Cairy, Coftee Chains slkc. Lo
achiave growth. Significant growtn is also
expactad in hew preducts, |.e. ice-cream mix and
fresh cream, launched last year by opening
upcoumntry markets.

#  The {urnover in tha raal estate sactor is negligible
as the sale of Gagan Enclave Extension project
could nat be laken up due o non-recaipt of
regutatory approvals. The implementation of this
project will be taken-up in Ihe current year which
will glve boost to the profitabiiity of this Division,

% Inthe sarvices segment, thare was improvement
in the operating profit due o higher other incoma
an account of increased royalty from corporate
loge. Corporate Governance & compliance
mechanism in the group rompanies is being
strengthened and ra-oriented in line with the
present day business requirements.

The Managemeanl Discussion & Analysis Report on
these businessas for tha year gnded 31 March,
2010 also appears as a separsta statemant in the
Annuaf Report.

JOINT-VENTURE

There hag been no pragress in the housing project
at Dehradun balng implamentaxd by tha joint ventura
company. M/s Amrit Diguijay Infra-Tech Pvt Ltd., as

the remaining portion of the land eould ot be
acguired. Efforts are being mads to sell the land
alraady acquired and appiy the proceads in angther
project,

ASSOCIATE COMPANIES
i) Amrit Banaspatl Co. Ltd. (ABCL}

During the yvear, Amilt Banaspati posted gross
tumover of Rs. 80,778.62 lacs and EBIDTA of
Hs. 1,994,20 lacs as against As, BY.BOG &4 lacs
and Rg, 1,294.38 lacs during the previous year.
ABCL is focusing en expansion of jis product
portfolio by cffering innovative value added
branded products theraby scaling-up the
aparalions and sconomizing on costs with a view
ko improve margins.

(iy ABC PaperLid, {APL)

The gross turnover during the ysar under roview
was Rs. 22,048.61 lacs and EBIDTA af
Rs.3.851.92 lacs as against Hs. 20,017 02 Jacs
and Rs. 3,235.10 lacs respactively in the
previaus year. ABC Paper has completed Mill
Expansion Plan and the increass in volumas is
the direct rasult of this initiative. Your Company
is divesting its investment in APL and will appily
the proceeds for sxpansion of the Bxisting
aperations of the company.

FIXED DEPOSITS

As on 319 March, 2010, your Company had
Flxed Deposits of Rs. 823.91 lacs {including
interest acoruad and due). Thera were no averdue
deposits a5 on 317 March, 2010 nor thars was any
failure in making repayment of the fixed deposits on
Mmaturity and interast due theraon in tarms of the
conditions of your Company's Fixed Deapozsits
Schame.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARMNINGS
2 QUTGO

The information ralating to consarvation of enargy,
lechnology absarption and foreign exchange earning
& ouigo as required under Section 217(1}e) of the
Companies Act, 1956 read with Companias
{Disclosure of Particulars in the Report of the Boarg
of Diractors) Aufes, 1988 is given in Annaxure which
tonms part of this Repaort,

Amrit Lwp, Umited
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PERSONNEL

Cordial employes relations were maintained
thraughout the year in the Company. The Directors
oxpress thair appraciation for the contribution made
by the employees to Ihe operations of the Company
during the year,

Tha particuiars of employees as per Section 217{24)
of the Companlas Act, 1958 are set out in the
Annexure which firrns part of this Report. Howaver,
as per the provislong of Section 213(1)(b)(iv) of the
saig Act, the report and accounts are being sant ko
all the membars of the Company exctuding the
aforesaid information. This statament shall be made
availatle for inspgction by any member during
working hours for a period of 21 days before the date
of the Annual Genseral Meating. Any member
intarasted in obtaining such particulars may write 1o
the Company Secretary at the Ragistered Office of
the Company and will be provided with a copy of the
same.

MMRECTORS

Shri J.K Khaitan and Shri Pavan Khaitan resigned
as Directors w.e f, July 18, 2010 consaquent to
restructuting ¢t sharehclding amangst the
promoters of the Company. The Board placad on
record its appreciation for 1the valuable services
rendered by ShriJ.K. Khailan and Shri Pavan Khailan
during their tgnure as Diraclors of the Company.

In accordance with the provisions of the Companises
Act, 1956 and Adicies of Association of the Company,
Shti GN.Mehra, Shri Rermeash Lal and Shri A K. Bajaj
retire by rofation and are aligible for re-appaintment.
AUDITORS

Mis V.Sahai Tripathi & Co., Chartered Accountants,
Statutory Auditors, retire at the forthcoming Annual
Ganeral Measiing and being &ligible, offer thamselves
far re-appointment.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
As required under saction 217(2AA) of the

{ii) thatthe accounting policies selectad and zpplied
are consistent and the judgmants and
estimates made are reasonable and prudsnt
50 as 10 give a trug and fair viaw of the state of
affairs of the company al the and of the financial
year and of the prefit or loss of the company for
thal period;

(iii} that proper and sufficiant care has been
taken for the maintenance of adaguate
accounting racords in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 for
safeguarding the assats of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other
irregularities;

{v) that the annual accounts have bean prepared
an a going concem basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A Report on Corporate Governance along with a
Cartificate from the Auditors of the Company
regarding complisnce of the conditions of Corporate
Governance pursuant to Clause 49 of the listing
agrasment with stock exchanges is annexed and
forms part of the Artnual Repart.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors convey their sincera thanks to the
vanous agencies of tha Central Government, Siate
Govemments, Banks and ather concerned agencias
far all the halp a2nd coopsration axtendsd to tha
Company. The Directors also deeply acknowlaedge
the trust and contidence the shareholders and
investors have placed in the Company. Your Direclors
also record their appreciation for the dedicatad
services rendared by the workers, slaff and officers
ol the Company,

For and on bahalf of the Board

Companiss Act, 1956, your Directors confirm: PrﬁsRTIFiED TRUE COPY

{ip that in the preparation of the annual accodnts,
the applicable accounting standards have been
followad;

July 24, 2(HO

For AMRIT :?Q%. HEE R

Noida MN.K. BAJAJ

Chairman & Managing Diracior

Corwes W TLILTY
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ANMEXLIRE

STATEMENT CONTAINING PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO THE COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE QF PARTICULARS
IN THE REFORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORAS) RULES, 1988 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTQAS' REPORT

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

{a)

The Company has been laying smphasis on the conservation of &nergy and laking several
measures |ike effective control on utilization of energy and regular monitaring of its eonsumption
etc. The adoption of enargy conservation measures has helped the Company in reduction of
cos! and reduced machine down-tima.

Energy conservation is an ongeing process and new areas are conlinuously identified and

{bj
suttable invesiments are made, wheraver necessary.

{c)  Various on-going measures for conservation of enargy include (i} use of energy efficient lighting
and beatter use of natural lighting, (i) reduction of energy loss, and {iii) replacement of cutdated
energy intensive equipment.

(d}  Totai energy consumption and anergy consumption par unit of praduction is given in the table
balow:

POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION
Dalry Produits
2009-10 2008-08
1 ELECTRICITY
(a) Purchased .
- Unlis jlacs Kwhj) 12.40 13.02
- Total amaunt {Als. lacs) ) E7.E4 67.37
- Rale/Unit {Rs.wh) 5453 5.18
(b} Dwn generation
Through Diesel Generator
- Units {lacs Kwh) 893 7.8
- Unitg/LIr, of Diasal O M 297
- CuslUnit (Rs./Kywh) .25 1043
2 BOILER FUEL
(B} Pat Coke
Teotal quantity (I tones) a94.92 -
Total cost (Rs. Iacs) 3r.7s -
Averaga ralesKg. (Rs.) T.63 -
(&) Furnace Cil
Tolai quantity {in KL} 109.50 23773
Total cost {As. lacs) 23.20 51.78
Avarage rata/Lir. {Rs.) 211N .77
(c] HS.D.
Total quanify {in KL) 4.20 216.08
Tolal cogt {Rs.flacs) 1.26 £7.085
Average ratefltr, (As.) 2888 .03
3  CONSUMPTION PER UNIT QF PHODUCTION
Production (KL} 8,567 T 606
Elactricity/KL [Kwh} 281 274

LI Rmslt Corp. Limited
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N TECHNOLOGY ABSORFTION
Research and Davelopment

{a} The Company carries out research and development in saveral areas including material & process
developments towards efficiency improvemants, quality Improvements, waste reduction atc. Apart
from process improvements, the research and developmant also aims at finding agulvalent
substitutes of various inputs and packaging materials to have cost savings withoul compromising
guality.

{b} The Company has derived benefits of praduct divarsification, cost reduction and better quality as &
result of the above effarts,

{c} The research and development is an on-goling exarcise and suitable eflors will conlinue Yo be mada

in future, )
[d} The expendiure on A & D has been as follows: {As. in Jacs)
. . 200010 2008-08
fiy Capital L. -
{ih Fecurring ' ) b1 0.11
tiii) Total 0.9§ | on
(iv) Total B&D expandilurs a3 & parcentage of turnover - -

Techrakofy absorption, adapiation and Innovation
The Company has nol imparied any technology for ils products.

B FORBGHNEXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGG

Particulars with regard t; foreign exchange earnings & oulgo appear ¢on page 57 of the Annual Report
and Aceounis.

For and on bahalf of the Board

Noida N.K.BAJAJ
July 24, 210 Chairman & Managing Director




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS

BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

The financlal ysar 2008-10 began amid greal uncartainty about the global as well as the domestic macro
srvironment. To cope with the global financial crsis, which impacted the world aconamy in 2008-03,
Govermments a5 well a3 the central banks across developed and many emerging economies reacted
quickly and decisively with large interest rate cuts, masslve injection of liquidity and fiscal shimulus
Frogrammes. These msasures helped in reducing uncertainties, increasing confidence, testering
improvement in financial conditions and allaying fears of a global deprassion, Whila the major emerging
markets bounced back quickly, the devetoped world economies have seen a graciual or slow rebound
from the recessionary trend seen last year. Thers are serious imbalances in some of the European
gconomres which are major concerm; gven so, tha warld is frrobaily on course for resumption of economic
growth with the pace being different from region o region.

The various stimulus measures which have been introduced by the Gowvt. of India and the Reserve Bank
of tndia towards the end of 2008 played an impartant role in maintaining liquidity in the financial sysfem,
limiting the spill-over impact on Lhe real economy and underpinning a widespread corfidence that the
Indian economy was well-placed ta weather the storm. That resilience has been demonstrated by an
upswing in economle activity from the beginning of the fnancial year 2008-10. Industrial oulput saw a
recovary with the Index of Industrial Production registering growth of 10.4% for the period April,
2008 — March, 2010; significantly up from 2.6% growth recorded in the previous year. Aceordingly, the
Indian sconomy is expecied to record GDF growth of 7.5% in the financial year 2008-10, Emarging
markets in general, and India in particular, are leading the way on the read to recovery, with strang
growth-rates based on robust sconemic fundamentals. Despite inflationary pressures gradually building,
a steady menitory policy course has been mairtained, with & focus an supportirg growth recavery.

BUSINESS SEGMENT-WISE ANALYSIS
2.1 SEGMENT - DAIRY PRODUCTS
{a) Industry structure and development

The dalry industry is of crucial imporiance to India. The counlry is the world's largest milk
producer accounting for more than 13% of world's tatal milk production. The annuad milk
production in India has been mare than 100 matric tonnes and is growing al tha rate of arpund
5-8% par annum. The dairy praducts are majar source of cheap and nutritious food to millions
ef peopla in India and the only acceptabla source of animal protain for a large vegetarian
segment of Indian population, panticularly, the landless, small & masginal farmers and warnen.

The milk processing industry is small compared to the huge amount of mitk produced every
year. Only about 15% ot alt the milk is delivarsd to the dairy plants. A specific indian phenemana
is the unorganized sector of milkmen & vendors who collect the milk from local producars and
sell the milk in both wban and non-urban areas, which handle about 65-707% of the national
milk groduction. In the organized dairy industry, couperative milk processars have about §0%
milk share. The cooperative dairies process 80% of the collectsd milk as Hquid milk whereas
the private dairkes process and sell only 20% of the milk collected as liguid il and the ramaining
80% is used for other value added dairy products.
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{bl Ogpportunities and threats

The demand for milk, at currant rate of GDP growth, is sstimaled to qrow at 7% p.a. The damand
tor milk is expected to grow steadily over the next dacade or so as the low Ineome ural and
urban families whe have highar expenditure alasticlly would alse ingreass their income due ba
hew economie environment. The untapped potentlal of the dairy sector |z immense and
opportunity to et up daity processing unlis is great, The changing marketing trends and consumer
awarenass towards hygiena, health consciousness and lifte style will push the demand for
processed milk. Further, the increasing presence of the fast food eateries and cofies chaing wilk
ensure sustalhed growth for processed milk and milk products. Simitarly, the food sarvicas
institutional market is expactad to post good growth in the coming pericd. Your Company sees
it a2 & growth area and is taking initiatives to harness the sama. Howeavar, tha tofal share of the
organized milk market is barely 15% and as much as 5% share of the total rmilk. productian is
commanded by the unorganized sector which specializes in selling sub-standard and more
often than nol adulterated milk with harmful chemicals.

{c) Segmental review

The produetion of dairy milk & milk praducts during the year was 8 567 KL as againsl 7 606 KL
in the previous year rapresenting a growth of 12.83%. The Dairy Division achieved sales lurnovar
of Rs, 3,123.78 lacs as against Rs. 2,789.30 lacs in the previcus year and operating profit
{EBIDTA) of Rs. 188.02 lacs as against Bs. 218.97 lacs in the previous yaar.

{d} Rizks and concerns

The UHT milk market has certain inherent weekresses and because of he high procassing
cogt, the UHT milk s expensive than the pasteurized milk. The fluctuation in the raw ik prices
laads to volatility in the market and consequant reduction of margins. Aapldly changing consumer
habits may alsc necessitate reotientation of market sirategies and prudent marketing actions.

{a} Cutiook

The Dairy Division has segmentized its business into retall, institutions and food services wilh
a view to increase market panetration. open naw upcoming markets, special thrust on arganized
retail and constant llaison with institutional clisnts, likg McDonald's, Mother Dairy, Coffee Chains
eic. The Division achisved significant growth In ice-cream mix and fresh cream launched last
year by apening up-country markets, Significant growth is expacted in these products in the
current year by opening upcounity markels in the States of Haryana, Punjab, Chandigarh and
morg focus in Dethi & NCR..

2.2 SEGMENT - AEAL ESTATE
(a) Industry structure and development

Real eslate sectot which saw steep decline in propatty prices, shrinking rentals, unavailability
of funds and backleg of construction projects started showing sighs of recovary in 2008-10.
Consumear confidenca has started building-up backed by steep discounts and farmation of
stable Govt. at the Centre, This revival can alss be attributed to the positive measures taken by
Heserve Bank of India as well as the Gowt. of india for supperting economic growth. The steps
taken by developers lo address consumer concerns through batter packaging and positioning
of their projects and cutting of prices also proved to be a cantributory facter in the upswing.
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() Opportunities and thraats

The secular growth story of India with GDP growing at around 7-8% and the congsaquent impac
on the real estate sector remains iniact. It is widely believed that the real estate sector it
positioned to caplure the bensdfits of 1his aconomic growth. Tha recent down rend has led to
comection of prices across locations. Low costfatordabie housing is one of the segmants ir
the sector which will continue o have demand over tha next faw yaars due to low interest rates
on housing loens, increasa in disposable income with salaried class, increass in middla class
population and tax incentives, Your Company has positioned itseit a5 a quality devaloper o
providing reagonably pricad plotsAlats o cater to the middle class segment. Due to noming

debt and good cash reserves, the Company is in a position o acquire land in C-tiar towns o
NCR at attractive prices.

Slow-down in Dethi & NCR markels due to aconamic gdownturm may aflect the businass
oparations. Further, the RBI measures on increased provisioning for roal astate sector and ks
axpression of concem on the asset price bubble, cost of debt may go-up for real estate industry

{c) Ségmental ravhow

Thera was no ectivity in tha raal sstate business during the year except lor some sale of gle
inventory of commercial space in the Gagan Enclave township. The fiagan Enclave Extensior
project could not be taken-up due to non-receipt of all regutatery approvals. As a resull, the
voiumes and profitability of the realty segment have been very low duning the year.

{d] Rlsks and concerns

The real satate market is cyclical and depends largely on paneral economic conditions, a
combination ¢f demand and supply tor floor space as well ag overall ratum aspirations of tha
investars. The genaral down-turn in the aconomy led to paor demand and negativaly impacted
the real astate markat. We beliave that we are mare resilisnt 1o the cydlicality of this business
due to tactors such as focus on rernaining a local Flayar, prowiding raasonably pricsd plotsilats,
good cash reserve, low leverage and avoiding expansive land acqulsitions in metros,

(o) Cutlogk

The raal estate sacler in India, after a rough patch in 2008-09, is looking optimistic, driven by
price eorrection, launch of afforgable housing and improvad liquidity. With damand from reat
esiate end-users ratuming, we think that the investars will also stan aggressivaly exploring
apporiunities to deploy their funds. On the residential realty side, the sentimants indicate
increasing willingness of peopls 1o buy houses and also a strong focus in the direction of
providing atordable housing 1o India's emerging middie class. All this augurs wall for your
CGompany which iz aiming at providing reasonably priced houses/plots to the middle class
segment in the NCR region.

2. SEGMENT-SERVICES

Tha Gompany is providing business advisory and BPO sarvices to the group companlas. The services

segment genarated revanue (Including other income} of Re.593.85 lace and operating profit (ESIDTA}
of A5.250.86 lacs during the year.
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COMPANY'S FINANCIAL FERFORMAMNCE & ANALYSIS

During the year, sales and other income of the Company grew by over 7.58% to Rs. 5,855.38 lecs as
against RBs. 3,583.75 lacs in the pravious year. The operating profit {EBIDTA) decreased by 16.21% from
Rs. 624.0% lacs to As. 522.95 lacs. The net profit after tax {after prior period adjustments) lz As.239.56
lzcs as against Rs. 277.95 lacs in the provious year,

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS

Your Company has evolved a system of internal contrals 1o ansure thal the assets ara safeguarded and
transactions are authorised, recorded and corractly reported. The internal control system is supplementad
by managemenl reviews and indepsndant pariodical reviews by the outside chartered accountancy firms
which evaluate the functicning and quality of Intarnal conirols and provides assurance of [1s adaquacy
and effsctiveness. The scope of intarnal audit covers a wide varely of operationgl methods and, as a
minimum, ensures compliance with speclfled standards with regard to availablliity and suitability of
policies and procedures, exisnt of adherance, reliability of managemeant information system and
authorization procedures including staps for safequarding of assats. The Aeports of intarnal audil are
placed before Audit Committee of the Directors. Audit Committas reviews such audit findings and the
adaquacy of internal control systems. The Statutory Auditors and the Intemal Auditors of the Company
alap Interact with the Audit Commiltee to share thelr findings and the status of corrective actions undar
implamentation.

HLIMAN RESOURCES

The Compary lays great emphasis on proper managemasnt of human rescurces and believes thal this
is the most important ingredient for achieving excelisncea in performance and sustainable growth. The
managemeani constantly reviews the skill mix and takes appropriate steps 10 achieve desired skill mix.
For upgrading the skifl, special emphasis is laid on training. Selective and intensive training s baing
imparted 10 employees at various lovels.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statemsnts in this “Managemamnt Discussion and Aralysis” describing ihe Company's objectives,
projactions, eslimalas, expectations or prediciions may be “forward looking siatemants ™ within the meaning
of applicatle securitins laws and reguiations. Actual results could differ materially from those expressed
or implied depending upon economic condilions, govemment policies, regulations, environmental laws,
tax regimses and other incidental factors.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

. Company’a phliosaphy on Cods ol C-arporate Governancs

to creata valye that can be sustained continuously for the benafit of its stakaholders. Ali employees are bound by 5
Code of Conduct that sets horth Company's policias on important issues including our relationship with consumers,

sharaholders and Government,

2 Board of Dlrectors

Tha Board of Directars conaisted of 10 Directors ason 31"
and non-executive directors which anaurag the desined lew
Board comprises of a Chalmmen & Managing Diracior, 4 M

March, 2010, The Board has a heatthy blend of axacutive
&l of Indepandance in functionin

sight, five non-Executive Directors ares Indapendent ditectors, All the non-sxecutive directors are eminent professionals

and bring in wasalth of expartise and expetiance tor diracting the meanagement cf the Comparny.
(2) Composiiion of the Bosrd
Mame of Dlrector Category MNo. of Board Whethar | No. of "**Mo. of Commiiea
(23R} Meatings attended [ direclorships | positions hald in
during 200910 | tha last In other pubiic] other companiag as
AGM Lmitad
Hald | Atlended companias Chailrman | Membor
K Bajaj* Prematar! 5 5 Yas 7 1 t
{Chairman & Managing Exzacutlve
Diractar)
ALK Khaitan** Pramigtar! 5 4 Mg 5 - 4
{Yica-Chairman) MNon-Execiftive
A K Bsjaj Promotar’ 5 5 Yus 4 - 1
{Managing Drirector) Exagutive
¥.K. Bajaj Fromoter! 5 5 Yesu il - 1
Noun-Exasutive
Pavan Khaitan** Promotar 5 5 Yas 2 - 1
Non-Execulie
Gi.M.Mahra Independerts 5 L Yau & 4 3
MNon-Exacutive
Homesh Lak —dio-— 5 5 Yasg a
K.H. Ramarmcorthy —d— 5 5 Yas & 2 g
Pravaer Kumar —tlo— 5 5 b3 1 & g
Mohit Satyanand —tn— 5 4 Yog a3 1

Withauk ramynaration,

T Conssguent b restructuring of sharehaldling amangst the promaters of the Company, Shri K. Khaitan and Shri Pavan

Khaitan reslgnad as Directors w.e.f.

Committae pasifiona of only of Audit Committes and the Sharg
considered as par sub-clause G of Clauss 49 of the listin

16.07 2010

holdars/investors' Grievance Committaa have basa
§ agreemant with stock exchangas.

&
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{b)

{c)

(d)

Nurnber of Board Meetings

During the fnancial ysar 2009-10, five (5) Board Meetings were held on 27" April, 2008, 30" July,
2009, 24" Septembar, 2009, 26" Jetobar, 2008 and 27" January, 2010, The maximum interval
botween any bwo mestings was not more than 4 months.

Infgrmatlon aupplied 1o the Beard

Tha Board of Dirgctors has complele access to any infermation within the Company. At the Board
Meetings, directors are provided with all relevant information on important matters, working of the
Company as wel as all related details ihat reguire dellberations by the memdbers of the Board,

Information regularly provided to the Board inter-alia include:

- Annual operating plang, budgets & updates;

- Expansignicapltal axpenditure plans & updates;

- Production, sales & financial performance data;

- Buginess-wiza aperational review,;

- Quarerly and anmual linancial results with segment-wise information;

- Minutes of the meatings of the Audit and other committees as well as circular resolutions
passad;

- SBigniticant initiatives and devaloprments ralating to labourfhuman resnurce relalions andior
problems and their proposed solutions;

- Information an recruitment and remuneration of senior officars just below the Board leval,
including appointment or remaval of Chist Financial Officer and Company Sscretary;

- Materiatly important show cause/demand/prosecution/penalty natices and legal proceedings
by or against the Company;

- Fatal or serious accidents Or dangerous ooCUrreBncas;

- Any issue which involves public or preduct liability ¢laims of substantial nature;

- Materlally significant effluent or pollution problems;

- Matarial default in financial obligations to and by the Gompany or substantial non-payment tor
goods sold by the Company,

- MNon-comphancas of any regulatory or statutory provision or listing requirement on non-payment
of dividend or delay In share transfers;

- fompliance reparts of all laws apphcable to the Company,;

- Details of any joint-venture or collaboration agreement;

- Transactigng that nvolve subslantial payment towards goodwill, brand eguity or intellectual
property,

- Proposals for investmeants, divestmants, loans, guaranteas, merjaers and acquisitions;

- Sale of matarial nature of investments, subskdiaries and assets which is not in the normal
course of busingss;

- Quarterly details of forsign exchange exposure and the steps taken by the managament lo imit
the risk of adverse exchange rate movement,

- Any other infotmation which is relevant for decision-making by the Board.
Matarially slgniflcant related party transactions

There have baen no malerially significant related parly transactions, pecuniary fransactions or
rel@lionship between Amril Corp. Limited and its directers during the year 2009-10 that may have
potential conflict with the interests of the Company at largs.
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{e) Detaila of remuneration pald to the Directors du ring the flnanclal year 2008-10:

(Amount It Ra.}

Nama (5/5hel) Ralatlonship Baslc Parqulsilag+ |Coemmi- Sitting Total
with ather Salary | Conirlbution to sslon feas
Dirgstora PFiothar Funds
N.K.Bajaj Father of . =
Bhii A K, Bajaj &
Shrl . Baja)
J.K.Khaltan Fathar of . - > B0, 000 £, 0600
Shri Pavan Khaitan
A K.Bajaj Bon ot Bhi M.K.Bajaj 18,90 008 13.36.226 | o o 32,326,225
& Brother of
Shri V.K, Bajaj
V.K.Baja) Son of Shri N.K.Bajaj - - - 75,000 75,000
& Brother of
Shri A.K. Bajaj
Favan Khaijlan Sun of Shrl J.K.Khaitan - - - 75 QG 75,000
GMNMehra S - - - 1,35.000 | 1,535,000
Rotnesn Lal . - - - 1,550,000 | 1,50,000
K.H. Ramamoorthy - - - - 1,35,000 | 1.36,000
Pravesn Kumar . . - - S0.000 8,000
Mohit Satyanang - & - - 75000 75,000

3. Commitlees of the Board
(a) Audit Commites

The Audit Committes was constituted on 26" July, 1995 and has since been in position since then,
The scope and the terms of reference for the working of the Audit Committes is constantly reviewed
and changes made from fime to time ke ensure effectiveness of the Committes. The constitution and
terms of referenca of the Audit Committea conform to the requirements of Clause 49 of the listing
agreements and Section 2924 of the Companies Act, 1956, Presently, the h:irrowing functicns are
performed by the Audit Committes:

= Overseging the company's financial reporting process and the disclosura of finaneial information
to snsure that the financial staterments are correct, sufficient and crodible;

*  Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if reguired, the replacement
ar removal of the statutory & intemail auditors, fixing audit fees and approving paymeants for any
other servics;

# Reviewing with management the annual financlal statements before submission to the Board;

»* Reviewing with the manegemant Quarterly/dnneal and other financial stalements before
submission to the Beard for approval:

Reviewing with the managemaent tha performance of stalutory and intemal auditors, the adequacy
of internal control systems and recommending improvemnents to Lhe management:

+  Heviewing the adequacy of internal audit functign:

¥
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Discussing with  internal auditars of any signiticant findings and follow-up theranty;

» Reviewing the findings of any internal investigation by the intemal auditors into meiters whera
thete is a suspected fraud or irraguianty of a failure of the interral control systems of a raterial
nature and reporing the matter to the Board,

+ Digeussing with the statutory awditors befere the audit commences on the nature and scopa of
audit as well as have post-audit discussions o ascertain any area of concern;

» Heviewing reports furnished by statutory & internal auditors and ensuring lollow-up theraon;
Mevlewing the Company's financial and nsk managameant policies; and
Initiating investigations into e reasons for substartial defaults in the payments to the deposilors,

debenturs holders, sharehaldars {in case of non-paymant of declared dividends} and creditors,
if 2y,

The Committes alsc reviews the Managemsnl Discusaion and Analysis of the financial condilion
and rasulls of operationa, statements of significant related party tfransactions and any other matier
which may be a parl of lts terms of raference or referrad to by the Board of Direclors.

The Company continues o derve immense benefit from he gefiberations of tha Audit Committee.
The Audit Comrmittee of the Campany as on 3™ March, 2010 comprised of the following four
directors of the Campany — thres non-gxecutive & independent and one gxecutive & non-indepandent:

Shd G.N . Mehra Chairman Independant, Non-Exacutive Direcior
Shri M K Bajaj Meamber Non-independent, Exaculive Director
Shri Aomesh Lal Mambar Independant, Won-Executive Director
Shri KA. Ramamoorthy WMember indepandent, Non-Executive Direclor

+ Shri Mohit Satyanand, independent non-executive Director, has basn nominated by the Board ol
Directors of the Company on 24th July, 2010, a$ member of the Audit Committée.

During the linancial year 200%-10. Audit Committee met feur timas and the attendance of the
Dirsctors on the above mestings was as follows,

Diractor No.of maetings held No. of mestings stiended
Shrl G.N.Mehra 4 4
Shri M.K.Bajaj Fl 4
Shri Aomesh Lal 4 4
Shri K.R. Ramamaorthy 4 4

The Managing Diraclor, Executive Director and other senior axecutives (when required}) are inyited to
ihe mestings. Representatives of the statutory auditars and intermal auditors are also invited to he
meetings, whan required. All the meetings are aitended by the statutory auditors,

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Commlttes.
All the members of the Audit Commities ware present at the last AGM held on 24" Saptember, 2009.

All the recommendations of Lhe Audit Committes during the yaar were acgepted by the Board of
Directors.
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{b} Sharsholdersinvestors’ Grlavance Committaa

{e

The Company has constitutad Sharehoclders'/investors’ Grievance Committee for speedy disposal
all grievances/complaints relating to shareholdersdinvestors. The terms of reference of the Commitl
include the following :

- To specifically look it complaints recsived from the shareholders of the Company;

- Tooverses the performance of the Raglstrar and Transfer Agent of the Cotmpany,

- To recommend measures for overall imprevement in the guakity of services to the INVeSIors,
The Committee as on 31.03.2010 comprised of;

Shri Pravaen Kumar Chairman Indepandent, non-Executive Director
Shri G N. Mehra Mamber Indapandsnt, non-Executive Director
Shri Mehit Satyanand Membear Indapandent, non-Executive Director

During the financial year 2008-10, the Sharehcldersinvestors' Grievance Committes met once ¢
12.03.2010. The meeting was attended by Shri Praveen Kumar and Shri kohit Satyanand.

Shri P K. Das, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Oficer of the Company.

Duting the year, the Company receivad 2 shareholders’ complaints oul of which one complaint wa
raplied/resolved ta the satisfaction of the investors. As on 31% March, 2010, one complaint wa
pending, which has aready been resolved. All valid raquests for share transfars receivad during th
yaar 2008-10 have been acted upon by the company and no transfar is pending.

Remuneration Commitiee

Independent Directors constitute 1he Ramunearation Committee of the Board, which is responsible fe
determining and recommending to the Board, the remungration payable to the Managing Directon
Exacutive Directors. The remunaration of the working directors is decided by the Board based an th
recommendatian of the Remuneration Committes within the celling prescribed under the Companis
Act, 1956. The remuneration to non-gxecutive directors comprised of the sitting fee only.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are az follows

- To review and recommend te the Board, the salaries, commission, cther bensfits and SEMViG
conditions of Managing/Whole-tima/ExesUtive Dirgctors:

= To approve the selection, appointment ard remuneration of relatives of Dlrectors for holding a
office of profit pursuanl to Section 314 of the Companies Act, 15856,

The Ramuneration Committee as on 31.03.2010 comprised of the following directors of the Compam

Shri G.N.Mehra Chairman Indapendant, nan-Executive Dlrector
Shrl Romesh Lal Membar Indepandent, naor-Exacutive Diractor
Shri Praveen Kumar Member Indepandent, non-Executive Director




4. General Body Meetings
The last three Annual General Meatings of the Company were as under:

Financlal Year DCate Time Placa

20007 27.09.2007 11:00a.m. Chaudhary Bhawan,
'E’ Blogk (near Jain Mandin), Kavi
Magar, Ghaziabad-201 002 (LLP)

200708 26 00 2008 11:008.m. Chaudhaty Bhawan,
'E' Binck {naar Jain Mandir), Kayi
Magar, Ghaziabad-201 002 (VP
2008-09 24,08 2000 .00 aum. Chaudhary Bhawan,

'E' Blesk (maar Jain Mandicy, Kavi
Magar, GGhazisbad-201 002 (L1.F]

5. Disclosures

fi)

i

There wera no transactions of matarial nature with the directors or the managesment or their subsidiaries
or relatives atc. during the year that had potential conflict with the interests ot the Company at large.
The details of related party transactions have been reparted in the Noles to Accounts,

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Companies
Act, 1956 and in conformity, in all material respects, with the generally accepted accounting principles
and standards in India. The estimatesfudgments mads in preparation of these financial statement
are consistent. reasonable and on prudent basis so as to reflect true and fair view of the state ot
aftairs and results/ocperations ot the Gompany.

fii) The Company has well-defined Risk Management Policias for each of the businessas, duly approved

v the Board, which are periodically reviewsd to ensure that the executive management condrols risk
by means of a properly detined rameawork.

{iv) The Company has nol raised any funds from the capital market (publicirights/prefererial issues ete.}

(]

dunng the fimancial year undar review.

Thare was no instance of non-compliance of any matter relating to the capital markeats by the Company.
Ma penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges, SEBI or any
ather slatutory authorilies on any matter relating te the capital market during the last three years.

(wity The datailz of the equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on 31° March, 2010 are as

under:

Mr.N K. Baja] ~ 59,996 shares; Mr.l K. Khaltan — 27 344 shares; Mr.A K. Baja) — 89,738 shares;
Mr.v.K.Bajaj — 64,237 gharez; MrPavan Khaitan — 12,925 shares; MrGN.Mehra - 2375 shares;
Mr.Aomash Lal ~ 500 shares; MrK R.Ramamoarthy — 500 shares, Mr.Pravesn Kumar — 300 shares
and Mr.Mchit Sabyanand — 500 shares.

{wil] The Company ig complying with 2l mandatory requiremenis of clause 49 of the listing agreements.

Nor-mandatory regquirement ralating lo Remuneration Committee has been adopted by the Gompany.

" Amrll Carp. Umited




B.

Meana of communication

Tha Quanerly and Annual Results arg communicatsd to al the stack exchanges whera the Company’
shares ars listed as soon as they are approved and taken on ragord try the Board ¢f Directors of th
Company. Further, the quarterly resulls are publizhed in leading newspapsers such as ‘Financial Exprass
(English) and ‘Jansatta’ (Hindi}. The results are not sent individually to the sharehalders, The financis
results ara also displayad on the wab-site of the Company at www.amrikeomp.com,

The Company has an Investor Grievarce Ceil in the Share Department ta redress the grisvances/querie:
af the shargholders. In order to redress shareholders’ querigs and griavances, the Gompany has :
separate &-mail |0 info @amritcorp nam,

The Management Discussion & Analyziz Report forms pan of the Directors' Roport.
Cade of Conduct

The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted Code of Business Conduct & Ethics. This Code i
based an three fundamental principles. viz. gond corporate governanca, good corporate cltizenship amc
exemplary conduct and is applicabls to all the Directors and seniot managemeant parsonnel.

In terms of the requirements of Clause 48 of the Listing Agreement, the Code of Business Conduct &
Ethics, as approved by the Board of Direclors, has baen displayed at the website of the company
www. amtcorp.com, undsr the heading ‘Investar Aelations’. Al the members of the Board and senio-
managamant parsonnal have affinmed compliance with the Code for tha yoar endad 31* March, 210 anc

& declaration to that effect signed by ha Ghairman & Mananing Diroctor is attached and forms part of this
report.

Code of Ganduct far Pravention of Insider Trading

The Cormpany has a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insidar Trading in the shares and securities of 1he
Company, This Cods, interalia, prehibits purchage/sale of shares of the Company by Directors and
employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in ralation to the Company.
This Cade is available on the Company's wabsite, www. amrilcorp.com,

Dlaclogure regarding appoimtmeantre-appointment of Directara

In aceordance with tha provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and Articles of Associstion of Lhe
Company, Shii G. N. Mehra, Shri Romesh Lal and Shrl &, K. Bajaj refire by rotation and are sligible for
re-appointmant,



The profiles in brief of the aforesaid Direclors are as undsr:

Hure of A Ounliiheathon Doala o Ho. of Shilrke Exprarilas Crttvar CHructorehips (n pukdis
Crector Appakntmenl | of the companive & memberenlp ol
Compary hald Committees s on 3103210
iGN Mehra | 77 ypoom | WLA,LLE, IAS wan Dwlirguilahvad ADC Prpar b imited
Shri s ehra I etiey H 053005 LA bracaarat fafrad | Actan ConvircHon Equpment L.
145 oMears having | Bheral Swats Lirsed
lengesperencan | Subme Limiod
exdrilniatvetien arg | L-P. Hotses Limioyd
Inauatrial Lisha Braco Umibed
davaleomen &
rrenagereal | fudh Gortunlllaa:
publiciprvats ABC Fapwr LintlLig - Chidenian
sectar compantee. | aion Comasuction Equgment Lic-Membies
Bluirat Sie Lirsbed-Chalpman
S irial L Imdad — CRAIrman
Lghu Braery Lirnibed — Ghalrman
Rprmyrmrailon Commides:
AR Pmpar Uritd - Mesrioar
Acticn Connngcion Eugirad Lid — Mamaar
Bhamt Seats Limied - M
Suvbres Limned « Membiar
Sharehalders' dnepiiont G s
Commbtien:
Bharat Saeis Limima -, Mombsr
Subres Limitod « Membar
| N Amm Baragpek Co. Lid.
Shn Agmeshlal | é%ears | OA, CAIB 200,304 L W!.'In_mnunuf = armecul Fietos Inrda Les
ragananca i la .
il o b, Evanaat Bark Limiiwd, Megal
cowvaring all Facats | of oy kg B nkper g o
i anking nodustry, | At Banoseali Ca. Lid. — Addn
Committas, Chalmran
el Banpspedi Co. Lid.
- Aamuneration Gommitee, Chalrrar
Cantakill Retail indls Led.- Aemunaralian
Lormimittae, Mamer
AP Papat Umhed
Sinrl & K. Bejg Aiears | R G .08 1832 GB.F38 Lr;unﬂ-inl&lwrll'; At Bangspst Ca L,
EEENEM T ) it Lmamireg Limwtesd
adibde cls & dood
dusinge At Raallhas Limded
Lommittad Memberahip
Shareho/dars’!inveytore  Grimvencd
Committes;
- BAC PaperLtd - Membar

10. Auditors’ Gartilicats an Corporate Governance

A cerificate has bean abtainad fram the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the provisions
telating to Gorporate Gavernance as laid-down in clause 48 of the listing agreement with the stock
exchenges. The same is annaxed to this repodt.

Declaration regarding compllance of Code of Conduct

I. Maresh Kumar Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Qirector of Amnt Corp. Limited, hareby declars that all the
Board Members and =enior management personnel of tha Company have affirmad compliance of the
Code ot Conduct for the year ended 319 March, 2010,

Place; Noida

Date - July 24, 2010

H.K.Balaj

Chairman & Managing Director

Amrlt Corp. Umlind



GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
¢+ Annual Ganaral Maating

Date 26" Septambet, 2010 |

Time 11.00 a.m. :

Vanue Chaudhary Bhawan, ‘E' Blgck (mear Jain Mandir}, Kavl Nagar,
Ghaziabad-201 002 (U.P.} B

Financial Calendar 20t0-11 {Tentatlve)

Board Moolings 1o take on record

Financial results for Quarer ended 30.06.2010 Last week of July, 2H0

Finangial rasults for Quaner anded 30.08. 2010 Last waek of Octobar, 2010

Financial rasults fpr Quarter ended 31122010 Last waek of January, 2011

Financlal results for Quarteriyear ended 31.03.2011 Lazl weeak of April, 2011

Book Closure Dale 20.09.2010 to 28.09.2010 (both days
inclusiva)

Dividend payment date

Dividand, ! any, deciared in the nexd AGM will be paid on or after 28" September, 2010 but befors the
statutary timea llmit of 30 days from the date of declaration.

Listing
5l Ho. Mame & address of stock exchanges
1 The Stock Exchange. Mumizai
Fhiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Streel, Mumbai-400 001
2 The Uttar Pradesh Stock Exchange Lid.,
"Fadam Towers™, 14/113, Civil Lines, Kanpur-208 {401

The Company has already paid annual listing fee for the year 2010-11 10 both the stock exchanges.

Stock Code

® The Slock Exchangea, Mumbai = 507525

w  The Uttar Pradesh Stock Exchange Lid. : AMRI

m  Demal ISIN in NSDIL. and CDSIL, for equity sharas ; INEBBBEQ 1026

k] Amslt Fave |laata



« Market Price Data

The monthly highf/low guolations of the equity shares traded al Slock Exchangs, Mumbai and BSE
Sansex during the tinancial year 2008-10 are given below:

ACL Share Price {Rs.) BSE Sensax
Month High Low High Low
April, 2005 5715 48.05 11,403.25 9,901.99
May, 2008 ¥3.25 54.00 1482525 11,682.99
Jduna, 2009 79.80 88,50 15,466.681 14,285 53
July, 2005 102.00 87,50 15,670.31 13,400.32
August, 20046 90,25 81.00 1592423 14,784,492
Septembear, 2009 93.95 61.00 17 1268.54 15.398.33
Qetober, 2009 93498 80.80 17, 326.01 1589628
Mervvembier, 2008 123.95 81.45 1710895 15,404 844
Decembear, 2001 25150 13010 17,454 81 16,601.20
January, 2010 29000 210.0% 1770113 16.280.82
February, 2010 29070 24205 16,496 .05 15.780.93
March, 2(1D 26500 215.00 17,711.35 16,772.56

a  Share Transfer Agent and Demat Regisirar

The Company has appointed Mfs MAS Services Ltd., New Delhi as the Beqistrar & Share Transfer
Agent for handling bath physical share registry wark and demal share registey wark having their office
at:

Mis Mas Servipss Limiled

T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla industrial Area,
Phase - Il, New Dalhi - 110 020

Phe- 26387281/82/83

Fax.- 26387384

amail;- infe® masserv.com

weksite | www, massery.com

* Share Trangfer Systam

The transters are normally processed wilhin a period of 15 — 20 days from the dats of receipt
if the documents are complete in all respects. Requests for dematerialization of shareg are
processad and confirmation is given to Lhe respective deposilaries i.a. MNational Securilias Depository
Ltd. (NSDL) and Cantral Depository Services {India) Lid. (CDSL) within 15 days. The connectivity with
NSOL & CDSL is maimainad through Mis MAS Services Lid. Tha Sharsholders have the option to
open account with any of the depository participants registered with COSL and NSOL. In the case of
off-market'private transactions involving transtar of shargs in physical form, SEBI has mads mandatory
for the transferee(s) to furnish copy of PAN card o the company/ATA. The sharehalders/investors are
advised to comply with the same while filing transfer documents with the Company/HTA.

15 Amrt Covp. Limbted
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Lt Hrknag Garftam

pistribution ot Equity Sharaholding
{a) Shareholding Pattern as on 31* March, 2010

S.No| Dasacriptlen No. of ahares held Sharehalding®
1, Promolers '
« Indian Promoters 18,00.858 56.33
» Persons actihg in concarvrelatives 2,92 516 8.10
2. Instiutional Investors
» UTI & Muival Funds 125 -
» Banks/Financial 2,037 0.06
» Institilions/nsurance Sompany - -
s Fl's ' - . -
3. Others
s Private Bodies Comorate 3,774,005 11.64
» Indian Public 7.26,1858 22 B
« MRBs/OBCsiPak sharaholders 8,492 027
Total 32,113,211 100.00

(b) Distributlon of Shareholding as on 31 March, 2010

Range of holding Mo. of Sage of| Mo, of shares [sage of Holding|
sherahclders shareholders
1 to 5 000 18,463 aa. 177 2,67.418 g.322
5,001 1o 10,000 45 0,242 33,137 1.062
10,001 to 20000 26 0.140 38,451 1.197
20,001 to 30,000 33 0043 20777 0.647
30,001 1o 40,000 ] 0.048 a2 o658 1.02€
4,001 ta 50,000 5 0.027 23.165 Q.71
50,001 to 1,00,000 10 0.054 74,721 2 32t
1.00,001 and Above 50 0269 27 21,614 a4, 700
Tonal 18,616 100.00 32.13.211 100.0¢

Dematerlalization of Shares

The Company has entared into an agreemart wilh NSDL and CDSL to offer depository services {
the shargholders. As on March 31, 2010, 30.42% of tha shares of the Company have bes
demalerialized.

Sacretarlal Audit

A qualified practicing Gompany Sacretary carried out & secretarial audit 1o reconcile the total admitte
capital with NSDL and COSL and the total issued and listed capital. The Secretarial Audit Hepc
confirms that the 1otal issued / paid up capital is in agreemert with the total numbsar of shares
physical ferm and the totah number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL

% Amrlt Corp, Ll
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dr= ] 3l g Corbanar

s Qutstandlng GDRAs/ADRsWarrants stc.
Naot applicable

=« Pantlocatlon:
Amrit Food
Amrit Nagar, aT.Read, Ghaziabad — 201008 (U.P)

* Address for correspondence:

fa} Regd. Office:
Amrit-Comp, Limited,
CM/28C (First Floor], Gagan Enclave, Amrit Nagar, G.T. Road, Ghaziabad — 201 009 (U P
Tel No.0120-2066880/2866885, Fax MNo.0120-2866888
e-mail : info@amritcorp.com, amritcmd & vsnl.net
wabsite: www.amritcmp.coq‘n

f} Corporals Office:
A-35, Sector - 65, Noida — 201 308 (U.F)
Tel; 0120 - 4506900, Fax: 0120 — 4506910
a-mail ; info@&amntcorp.com
wabsite: www.amritcorp.com

{c) Registrar & Share Transfer Ageni:
Mas Sarvices Limited
T-34, 2nd Flogr, Okhla Industrial Arga, Phase - ||, New Delhi - 110 020
Fh:- 26387281/82/83 Fax:- 263872384
#-mail;- [nfo@massary.com
website: www. massery.com

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all thelr corrgspandence 1o their
respective Depository Participants.

AUDITCAS' CEATIFICATE REGARDING COMPLANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS DF CORPORATE GOVERNANGE UNDER
CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT

To the Membars of Amrit Corp. Limited

Wa have examined the compllance of the conditions ol Cerporata Governanes by Amrlt Corp, Limitad for tha year ended
31% March, 2010 &5 slipulaled in clause 49 ot tha lisling agreement of the said Company with the stock exchanges.

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Govamanes is the ragponshilily of 1he managemsnt. Our sxamination was
imited lo proceduras and implamentation thereof. adopted by e Sompany lor snauring the compliance of the conditions
of Cotparate Govamance, it is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial stalemants of the Company,

In our opinion and 1o tha best of our infarmation and explanatlons given o us, we caddilty that the Company has complied
with Ihe condltions ¢f Carparete Govemanee a5 slipulated in the above-manticned Listing Agreamant.

¥ye state thal in respect of investor gievances received during the yaar ended 31 March, 20140, no InYastor gnavansss
are pending against the Company for a period exceeding ong month as per re¢ords mainlained by the Company.

Wa futher stata that sueh compliance 1S naither an assuranad as 1o the futura viability of the Company nor the aliciency
ur afleclivenéss with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For ¥ Sahal Tripathl & Co.

Chartered Accourianis

Firms Ragistration Mo, 000262M

Manizh Mohan
Place: Noide Partrar
Cata: 24" July, 2010 M. Mo, 091607
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CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

For AMRIT CORP. LIMIT

AUDITORS’ REPORT

Comprany

To tha Mambers of

Am
1.

fit Carp. Lid.

We have audited the attached Balance Shegt of
Amrh Cowp.Limiied as at 31* March, 2010, the
Frofit and Loss Account and alse Cash Flow
Statemenl for the year ended on that dale
annexed thereto. These financial statements ara
lhe respensibility of the Management of
Company. Qur responsibility is 10 express an
opinion on these financial staterments based on
our audit,

We have conducted our audit in aceordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in India.
Those standards raquire that weg plan and
perform the audit ko obtain reasonabie
assurance about whether the tinancial
statements are free of makerial misstatements.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and
disclesures in the fimancial statements. An audit
alse includes assessing the accounting
principles used ang significant astimates made
by management. as well as evaluating tha
averall financial statement presentation. Wa
believe that our audit provides g reascnabla
basis for aur opinion.

As required by the Companies {Auditors” Report)
COrder, 2003 issued by the Gowvernment of India
in wetms of sub-secticn (44) of Section 227 of
the Companies Act, 1956 and on the basis of
such checks as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanation
given to us, we set out in the Anngxurg, a
statermnent on the matters specifiad in paragraph
4 and 5 of the said crder.

Further to our comments in the Annexure referred
to in paragraph 3 above, we report that

i} We have obtained all the infermalien and
explanations, which to the best of our
knowiedge and belief were necessary for
the purpose of our audit]

iy In our opinion, propar books of accounts as
racuired by law have been kept by the
Company s far as appears trom our
examination ot those books;

iiiy The Balance Sheet, the Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Staternant dealt

W}

Wi}

Place: Moida
Crata: 24 July, 201101

oreta

with by this repart are in agresrment with the
books of account;

In pur opinion, the Balance Sheel and Profit
& Loss Account dealt with by this repoit have
baen propared in compliance with the
applicable accounting standards referred
I in sub-gection [3C) of Section 211 of the
Companies Act, 1958,

On tha basis ol nformation and explanation
given to us and rapresentations obtained
fram the Campany and taken on record by
the Board of Birectars, we raport that there
it no Directar of Lhe Company who, as at
319 March, 2010, 18 disquelified u/s 274 (1)
{3) af the Camparmes Acl, 1956, from being
appointed as Diractor; and

In our ocpinian and to the best of aar
infarmation amd according o Lhe
explanations givan to us, 1he said Balance
Sheat and Profll and Loss Account, read
tagether with the sighificanl aceounting
palicies and other holes to accounts
appearing in Schedufa Q and foot-notes
appeanng under sthar schedules | pive the
information raquired by the Companias Act,
1856 in the manner so required and giva a
true and fair view in conformity with The
accounting principles generally accapted in
India:-

a) Inthe casa of the Balanes Sheet, of the
Stale of Aftairs of the Camparny ag at
31 March, 2010;

Lt In the case of tha Profit and Loss
Account, of the Prgfit for the year ending
March 317 2010,

¢} Inthe case of the Cash Flow Statement,
of the cash flows for the year ended on
that dale

For ¥ Sahal Tripathl & Co.
Charterad Accountants
Firms Registration Mo, GO0262MN

Manizsh Maohan
Pariner
M.Ma. DA1607

Amrit Corp. Limited




ANNEXURE TG AMDITORS AEPCGAT

(Matwcrond to in paragraplt (3) of owr report of even dals)

Annexure referred to In paragraph (3) of Auditor's
Repor to the members of Amnit Corp. Limited on
ihe financlal siatamenta 1or the year anded
March 31, 2010

L H

iw)

[{33]

(b

{c}

ib}

{c)
(d}

{e}

The pompany has maintained proper ragorids
showing lull particulars, including quantitalive
details and situaticn of fixed aseals.

The company has a phased programme of
physleal yerlficatlon ol its finad assels which, in
Qur opinien, is reasonabla having regard 1o the
siza of the company and the ratura of its agsels.
In aceordance with such programme, the
management hae physiealy verified ne fixed
aggets during tha yeasr and no material
disorepancias werg noticed by them.

During the year, thare wae no subslantlal disposal
of fixad assels.

aAccerding (o the Informalion and exptanations
given 1g uy, physical verbeation of inventories is
conducled by the managamant al parliedic
intervals. These intarvals are reasonable having
regard to the size ol the company and the nature
of its invantories, !
The progcedures followed by the company for
physical veriication ¢f inveniories are reasonable
and adequala in ralalion o lhe size of the
company and the naiure ol ils businass.

The company is maintaining proper racards of
inventory and no matenial discrepancles wers
noliced on physical veriflcation as compared 1o
book records.

The Company has grantad unsecured lean
armounting of e 85 lacs to one {1] compahy
coverad in the reagistar maltlained undar Section
3 of the Gompanies Act, 1955, The maximum
amount involvad duelng the year and iha year-
end balances of such advances aggregales 1o
Fs. 91.06 lacs.

The rate of interast and qihar terms & conditions
of Ihe unsecured loans given by the Company
e not prima-facie prejudicial (o the interast of
the company;

The unsecuréd loan & ragulany sarvicad as par
agraad tarms;

There £ ne overdus amount it respect of 1he
said unsecured oan;

An unsecured loan of As. 392.73 lacs was
grariad ke the arstwhlle Amrit Banaspat Company
Lid. (ABCL) by the then Amrit Enienpriges Lid.

if

o)

{now known as 'Amrit Ganaspatt Co.Lid.'). &
company coverad undar the ragiter mainlained
w's 301 ol the Act undar 1he Madified Rehabilitation
Schame (MR3) of ABCL aanctioned by the Hon'bla
Boanrd of Industrial & Financial Aaconatroction
{BIFAY. Oul of the aald unsecurad loan, & sum of
Rs. 8853 lace has davolvad on the ¢ompany
purgyant 1o tha Scheme of Arvangeman
sanctionsd by the Jurlsdctional High Courts and
bacoming aeffective from 1% Aprll, 2008. Basids
this, the Company has not recaivad foblained
ursecUrad advances fiom any Gompany,
coverad |n the raglsier malntained under seclion
3 of the Comparnies Act, 1056,

The MRS provided that the said loan would be
subgrdinaled to institutionabanks tamm loans and
wolld be rapald after payment 1o all financial
institulions/an ks, Accordingly, tha Intarest on the
sald loan has been fized at 10% on apnual basgis
gndg the repaymant of the loan will commence
from the tnanmclal year 2010-11 as par t@rms of
MRAS. In view of this, wa ara of the opiteon that
the rata of interest and other terms & conditions
ot the loan ara not prajudicial 1o the imereses ol
he company.

Intarest iz baing regularly paid on the above [ean.
Howsever, the [oan repaymant will commance, as
mentioned In (f} abowe, from the finangial year
20$10-11,

In our apinion and accerding 1o the informalion and
explanations glven to us, there ars adequate Internal
control procedures commensurata with the size ol
the company and the neturs of ks bueinass for the
purchage of inventory and hixed peeels and lor tha
sala of goods and servicds. There was no continuing
lailure o comsesl major weaknasees it internal cantrels
noticed by us during the course ol our audit.

{a) In our wpinlon and according to the intormation

()

and explanations given 1o us, the particulars of
conlracls or arrangements relerréd o in aeclion
A01 of the Act have hean enlared in the registar
raquirad to be mairtansd undar thal section.

In our opinion and accarding the infermeation and
axplanalions givan to ys, the transactions made
in pursugnes 5t such CONMACH ar Arrangemants
escaeding tha value of Hs. five lacs in respact ol
any parly during the year have been mada al
prices which are reasonable having regard to
the pravailing marcal pricas at the ralavant time.

[m qur opinlen and according to the infermalion and
explanations given 10 ua, Ihe company has complied
wih tha directives issued by the Aeserve Bank of
india and ke provislons of sactions 584, SBAA or any

Amrit Cors. Limived
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other relevam proviglons af the Ast and the Aules
framed Ihara-undsr, whargvar applicable with ragard
to Ihe depaslls accapted during the yaar, In accordancs
with the Information and explanallons glver to us, ihere
wera no orgers passad Dy the Company Law Board
or Malwnal Company Law Triounal or fesarve Bank
of India or any coun or Any other “Tribunal" which
have nat basn complled with,

In qur gpinion the company has an intemal audit system
which is commensurate with the slze and natura of
[ts business.

Maintananca of cost resonds has nol been prascribed
By the Cantml Govt, under chause (i) of sub dection
{1} of section 208 of the Act In reapect of the presanl
manufacturing activities of the company,

{a) #According to the information and explanations
given 12 08 and on the baals of our examinallon
of the books of mecount, in our oplnien the
COMPAny is raguHar in depoaiting the undisputad
stalutary duss including providant fund, invesior
acducation & proleciion fund, amployess state
MSurance, incoma tax, salae tax, wemlth iax,
wervice @x, cusiom duly, sxcies duty, cass and
any cihsr maletal stalutory dues as applicable
wilh Iha Sppropriate &ulhariies, According to the
information and explanalions given to us, thara
wera no undispuled amounts payabla In respact
of the abova dues which wara outstanding as at
314 March, 2010 for a period of more than gix
months from the date of becoming payatie,

According to tha records of the company
axzamined by ua, the particulars ol the dues
outstanding of income tax, sals lax, wealth tax,
arvica tax, cusiom duty, excies duty and case
asg at 31% March, 2010 which hava ngt bean
deposited on aecount of disputas, are BE uhder;

(&)

Marma
al tha
Statuas

Matura of duas Amounl Farurm wherg
dispute s

pending

neome
Tax
Acl, 161

Withirawnal of
|
Alkwance
ANk ailhvar
dluniowsnces

Rs. &45,71,6681 High Court

Allahabad

10. The company has no accumulated losass as al 317

11.

March, 2010 and has not Incurred any cash losees in
the financial year ended on that date or in the
irmmadiately preceding financlal year.

The comparny hag not during the yaar defaulted in the
ra-payrrant of dues to the bank. The company hes no
loans from financlal inglitulions nor haa i issved any
debentures.

T2
13,

14,

15

17.
18,
19.

20,

21

Fiace: Nolda
Date:; 24" duly, 2010

The company has nol granted any loans or advances
on tha bagis o securily by way of pledge of ahares,
debanturag and other sacurlties.

The company & not & chit fund, nidhi, muiual benef
tund or @ society, Accordingly, the proviskons of clause
A(xhly wf the Crder are nol appllcatla,

In raapect of dealingfrading in aharss, securities,
debantures and othar Invealmants, In Gur opinion &g
according i@ the Infonmation and explanations given
1o we, propar records have besan maintained of the
tranzactions angd contracts and Omaly antrlas have
been made Iharein. All tha shares, securitias,
detantures and other iInvastimors have baen held by
the Campany in is own nams.

In our opinlon, and accending to the Information and
sxplanalions given to ug, the Company has nol given
any guarantes lor laans taken by alhars rom banks
or financial Inatintlons dudng W year. Thare is no
corpomate guaranes which s putstanding at ihe snd
of the year. Accordingly, clauae 4(xov) of the ardar |5
not applicath,

Company haa not obtalinag lerm loan from bank during
the year snding 31¢ March, 2010,

According 1o tha infermation and explanation glvan 1o
ug, in our gpinken, thete ara no funds ralsed on a shodt
lerm basis which hayva been used for long tarm
invasmment,

Curing the year, the company has not made any
pralerantial allotment of shares o parles and
compenias covarad in 1he mglsier maintalnad undar
Saction 301 of the Companles Acl, 1958. Accordingly,
ctause 40xvlii) of tha omdar s nol applicable.

The company hae nat Isausd &ny debanturas.
Accordingly, clausa 4(zik} of tha ordar |8 not
applicable,

The company has not ralsed any money by way of
public isave during the year. Accordingly, clause 4{xx}
of the omer & not applicable.

During the courss of cur sxaminatian of iha books
and records of tha company, carrled out in accardance
with the genarally accaptad auditing practices in Indla
and according 1 the Indormation and explanalions
ghven o us, we have nailher coma acrosa any instance
of fraud on or by the company, notlced or raportad
during |ha year, nor have we bean Informed of any
such case by he managamen,

For ¥ Sahal Triputhl & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firma Asglatration ho. GOG2E2N

Manish Mohen
Parinar
M. Mo 081607




ChiiirisD IRUESUPY

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2010

Q')/ Ax at As at
Schedulas 31.03.2014 31.03.2000
(As.} {Aa.}
I. SOURCES OF FUNDS
(1} Shareholdars"Funds
{a) Capital A 321,322,310 21,3210
{b) Paservas and Surphus B 28.88,09,028 25 00,41 144
{2} Loan Funds ;
{aj Secured Loans c 2,00,54,045 24185245
{p] Ungecured Loans O 5,18, 78,045 7 98,43 583
(3) Doterrad Tox Llablity T A3, 60,81,405
TOTAL 41,00,10,452 39,31 BE,6ER
Il. APPLICATION OF FUNDS
{1) Fixed Agasts : E
[a) Gross black 28,15,73.832 23,89 88 753
{by Legs: depreciation 17,87,48,043 16,48.25.485
(] Metbloch 8,58,27.989 7,40 B0, 268
{d] Capital work-in-progress 5,02,544 448 16,916
2,82, ,033 11,88,77,184
(2} Invastmenia F 11,16,19,060 11.60,19,000
(3) Currani Asxzets.Losns & Advances : G
{8) Inventorias - 3,908,583, 054 3,51,60,862
(b} Sundry dabtors 70,431,241 B3 72,168
[c) Gash & bank balanses 13.04,02,683 6,2317,148
(th Loans A advances | 900,57 854 9,41,08,544
17,9472 20,39,58,739
Laas - Currant hablities & provisions H 5,10, T A 4,56,68,255
Met Currant Aagats u.zu.m.iu 15,82,00,454
TQTAL 1,90, 10 482 39,31.86,6568
Moles 1o Accounts i} .

Scheduies A to H & © annexed and signiflcant Accounting Policies form pan of this Balance Shast,
This ig 1ha Balanca Sheet refemed to in our report of even data.

For ¥ Sahai Tripaihi & Ca. N, K.Balay Chairman & Maraging Oirector
Chartersd Accouhlants
Firms Ragistralion No. 000262N G.N.Msehra

Freveen kumar

MAMNISH MOHAN Mohit Satyanand Birectors
Fartrer .. Balal
M. N 1607

AK. Bajaj Managing Diractor
Flace : Noida J.C. Rana Exacutive Diractor
Datad : July 24, 2010 P_K. Das Campdary Secrafary

1 Amrly Corp, Linwites



PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010

0]

Areri. Bacieg Bavidens,

Schedules

INCOME

Sales/Services (TDS of As.24,50 4111 Pravious year Re. 25,563,080}
Increased(decreasa) in stocks

Cither income

EXPEMDITURE
haterial conswmed
Manufacturing expensas
Employees' emalumeanls
Excise duty

Other axpeanses

Profit betore Deprociation
Less ; Depreciation

Profit befora taxation

Provision for Taxation
- Current Tax (incl.wealth tax)
= MAT credit availed
- Defferred Tax

- Fringe Banefit Tax

Frofit aller faxation

Frior pariod adjustments
- Tax adjustment
- Dapraciation written back

Met pralit for the year
Add : Balance of Profit Brought Foreard

Profit avilable for appropriation
APPROPRIATIONS: :

a)]  Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares
b)  Tax on dividend

¢l General Aesorve

Balance carred 1o Balance Sheet
Eamning per Share {Reler Mota Mo, 13 of Sch,"Q%

Molos o Accounts
Additienal Information

el e

M

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

Q
P

Current Pravious
Year Year

(Rs.) Rz
33,74,50,343 31,37 .87 BGE
8,34, 770 - 720,441
4,80,87,308 445,87, 764
38,63,72,421 95,980,895 801
19,91,35,639 16, 10,591,458
B,47,02,176 5,54 45,095
3,31,48,237 300,41, 97
4,78,38,477 4,58 81,440
34,38,24,529 30,55,60,711
4,15,47,892 5,38,35,180
1,18,77,.630 1,23,06,244
2,95,70,262 4,12,28 936
71,890,000 1,21,35,000
{37,00,000) {B5,57,000)
1,61,819 6,400,401

- 865,020
2.58,18,443 3,61.41,506
=% . 83,47 81

(37,258) [1,341)
2,50,55,701 2,77.95,006
9,05,61,489 11,02 85,603
12,56,17,690 14,70.80,629
64,26,462 64,26, 462
10,67,355" 1092178
2,00,00,000 #4,00,00,000
9.80,23.873 9,95 61,9859

a.08 BG5S

Schedules | o P annexed and the significant Accounting Policies form part of this Profit & Loss Account,
This is the Profit & Loss Accountt refarred to in our report of aven date,

For ¥ Sahal Tripathi & Co. N.K_Bajaj
Chartered Accountanis
Firms Ragistration Mo, 000262M G.N.Mehra

MAMNISH MOHAM

Pravaen Kumar

Chairman & Managing Oirector

Mohit Satyanand Directors
Parinar V.K. Bajaj
M, Mo, 091607 ;
ALK, Bajaj Managing Director
Plage : Moida ~ J.C.Rana Executive Director
Dated : July 24, 2010 P. K. Das Company Secretary
a2 Amrlt Corp. Limited




CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 201¢

{Ru.In lacs)
Particulars 31.03.2010 31.03.2008
{&] Caesh flow from oparating acllvities
:’drt;ﬂ belore 1ax /470 412 79
Loss on sale of investmeants Q.72 31.258
Depraciation 118.40 12305
Losa cn =ele ol pasats 054 1.58
Dt biigrest | “1#.115 .50
ividend/intare! (1B0.G0)
Profit an sala of assets N T P!" e 3.23
Frofit on selg of Lnits CERT!FIED TRUE co El}.za;
Provigion writlen ack {124 -
Opprating profis befora working capltal chimgas 300,74 ____EGE.E
Adjuatment 1Gr:
Treds & ather rRciavables F,: T e T2 15.64)
Loana and advansas v to. B A as.a7 191.35)
Inventorias SRR ) L} 114.87]
Trada payahle w {0.BC
L ____tEed4 (11288
Cash genaration fkom oparaliong PSS g . LY ATE.58 35E.56
Lasz:Enrest taxk pasd 19969} 1BH.51}
Met Cash ganerallan rom sperating actinties 3TE.B8 26605
{B) Cazh How (rom [nveating activitias
Furchase ol lweslitant {138, (150 00}
Dividandianiersst Incoma 147 1580.60
Furchase o fiked astals {2 [31F EBY
Sale ol fixod aseals 14,21 11,12
Zate of invasimant meEs 118,03
Met cash rom investing eclvities 454,99 TSR
{C)  Cash flow o Fnantiog activities
Rademption of pretarance capiial .10} [0.254
Procasds irom porrowing ol working capltal b r ] (282
Procasds fram lang tarm borrgwing 41.07) 48,35
Frocuals 1_rnrr| unsecured Ioans 11034 167 14
Interast paic L10s.04) [B&. 45
Faymeant af dividand (incetax on dwddond) {7515 [54.04)
Met cash used in financing ectivitiea (100,28} Ez.50
Mt incronss dacraass In cash & cash aguaivalants .78 17517
{Caah and cash gquivelents as at 91.04.09 (cpaning balance) B23AT 448,05
Gash and Ceah Equivalents As A1 31.03.10 {cloging balance) 1,354.03 6227

NOTES! 1) Figures in brackats represent cach outflows.
it Previous yeer's figures have boen ragrolpadirecasl,wheraewver naceeeary.

As par our rapart annaxed.

For ¥ Sahai Tripathl & Co. #.K.Bajaj
Chartared Accountanis
Firmg Regisiration No. Q0D3g2M G.MN.Mehra

Praveen Kumar

Chairman & Menaging Diractor

MAMISH MOHAN Mokt Satyanand Diractars
Parfner V.K. Bajaj
M. Mo. 031 507
ALK Bayay Managing Diresior
Place : Moida J.C.Rana Cxaculive Director
Daled : July 24, 2010 P. K. Das Company Sacratary
E L Amrlt Corn. Limited



Bz

FETN P Sy v—

SCHEDULES
Schedule'A’ SHARE CAPITAL
A M As al
31.04.2010 31.03. 2005
(An.) {As5.}
Authorized
10,080,000 —  19% Radesmabla Cuhnulatlve
Prefarance Shargs of As, 10/- gach %,00,00, 000 1.0, 00, Ok
4000000 - 11% Redesmabla Cumulative 4,004,000, 004 400,089,000
Prafarance Sharas of Rs, 10/- each
2.00,00,000 - Equity Shares of Bs. 10/~ aach 20,00,00,000 20,00, 00,000
Total 28,00,00.000 25,00 00,000
Iasuad, Subscrlbed & Pakd Up '
32,13,231 - Equity Shares of Rs. 10~ Each fully paid up 3.21,32.310 3.21.32,310
(3213231
Total 3,21,32,310 3,21.32,310
Hates:

1 The paid-up share capilal of the company was reduced to Rs.321.32 lacs wel. 1 st April 2006 consadguenl Lo re-
oraanisation of the ¢apital under the Schema of Arrangement sanctioned by the Hor'ble High Courts of Allgkated, Deihi
4 Chanchgarh,

2. Before raorganization of the squity shara capital of the Company under the Scheme ol Arrangsmant, 1he paid-up
Camtal inglucled:
[i} 72500 equity shares allolad as lulfy paid up pursusant 16 a contract without payman! bieing received in cagh;
liy  28.80,000 equity shares issued as fully paid up bonus shares by capitalizetion of Reserve:
{ly ¥,18,000 equity shares issued as fully paid-up o financial inatitulions upon convarsion ol part of term ipans;
{iw} 2.73.472 ety shares issued as fully paid up 1o 1he sharehotders of arstwhila Amsit Protein Foods Lid (APFL) in
purguancs of tha amalgamation of APFL with the Company.

Schedule ‘B’ RESERVES & SURPLUS

. Ax at LR

©3.03.2010 31.03.2009

(Ra.) {As.)

Praference Share Capital Rademption Reserva 40,50,000 40, 50,000

Revaluatian Reserve 64,219,155 54,28 155
Ganeral Resarva

Balanga brought lorward 14,00,00,000 10,00,00,400

Ada: Transtar from Prolit & Logs Ascount 2,00,00,000 4,00,00,000

16,00,00.000 14.00,00,000

Profll & Loss Account £,80,23 973 9,85.61,989

Tolal 26,85,03.029 25.00.41,144

34 Amelt Corp. LUmited




Schedule 'C' SECURED LOANS
As A5 at
N03. 700 31,63 2005
(Aa.} s}
{a) Term Loans fram
Punjat: Mational Bank ar. 74 469 12261878
Interest accrued & due on bank loans a7.342 1,228,525
Total {a) ' 88,714,811 1.23,B4,403
[b) Working CTapltal {Cash Credil) from ‘
Punjab Mational Bank 2,658,380 69,932,527
Total (b} 74,058,380 59,32 527
{c} Vahlcla Loans 2,77, 714 4B.72.318
Talal (c) a2, 77,774 4872316
Tolal {a+b+c) 2,03,54,945 2.4t 85 248

Moteg

The 1erm fnans ara secured § 1o be sacured by & equileble mortgags of the immovable propertiss bath prasant and (elure and 4 et
charge by way of hypotacation avar tha machnery, machinasy spares. tools and accessores and cther movable both prasent and
Juturoy gave and except book dents) ranking pen-pagay with the charges created: 1o ba crerted on tha Company's azsals, subjact ta priar
charga of the bankers on working cepitel on specified movables. Tha term loBne are also securad by:-

(el Exclusive first charge an tha assats created’ to be created with Bank's Tarmm Loans,

(B)  Firsl charga ar all e Fixed Sssets of the Samgany ranking pan passa with the esisting chargs holoers,

[l Second charge on all {he current assals of the company ranking peri pasau weth 1the exisiing cherge holdars; end
(d) Peraonal querentees ol 5'5hn M.K.Bajaj.}. K Khailen, Al Bejsj end Paven Khailan.

Tha waorking cepilalicash credil bormowangs &re securdd by

(@)  Hypolhecatlon ot raw matenals, stores finished goods. stock-in-process, book-debie;

(bl  First charge an Currenl Asaets ranking pari-pEssu with the existing chargeholdars,;

(¢} Second charge wn the laed assels of the Company ranking pari-passu wath he axsting chargaholders; amnd

(dp Persomal quarantess of SA55hn MoK Bajaj. ) K. Kheitan, 4. K Bajaj and Pevan Kheitan.

3. Wahicle lnan{z) ere sacured by hypthecaton of tha vehicles purchesed cut of the seid loans.

Schedule ‘D’ UNSECURED LOANS

As at Ag at
H.03.2010 31.03.2009
(Re.) {Rs.)

Flxed Deposits
Fayable within one year As. 4,57 97,000 (Rs, 3,45 40,000/-) 6,23,75,000 5,08,21,000
laterast Accruad & dug 15,823 15,441
Other Unsecured Loans 292 .086,122 2,90,08,122
Tatal 9,18,76,345 7.88,42 563

15 Anrlt Corn. Umlind
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Schedule ‘F°  INVESTMENTS

As at Ag al
LONG TERM INVESTMENTS (HON-TRADE} 31.03.2010 31.03.2409
(A%} [As.)
& CUOTED
{iy Purple Enteriainmeni Ltd. 75,000 75,000
7.500 - (Previous year 7.500) Equity Shares
of Rz 10~ aach tully paud up
{iiy Amrit Banaspati Co. Lid. T,24,98,000 ¥.24,58, 00
16,40.037 (Pravious year 18 40,037)
Equity Shares ot Ra, 10/~ gach fully paid up
{ll) ABC Pape+ Ltd. 2,29 98,000 2,29 95,300
22,939,900 {Previous year 22,949,500 :
Equity Shares of Rs, 10/ asch fully paid up
B UNQUOTED
(I} ABC Paper Lid.
15,0000 (Pravious yaar 20,00,000] 7% Aadearnabia 1,50,04,000 2.00,00,000
Preterenca Shares of As. 10/ aach fully paid up
{I Amrlt Pulp & Paper industries Lid. 3,897,500 3,97 500
39,750 (Previous year 38,750) Equity Shares
ol As. 10/-each fully paid up
(i} Amelt Digwijay Infra-Tech Pvi, Lid. 49,800 4% 500
4,950 (Previous year 4,850) Equity Sharnos of
Rz, 10 gach lully paid up
Total 11,10,10,000 11,60.19,000
Aggregats beok valie-Cuoled: 4.65 72,000
-Unguatad: 1,54,47.000
Aggregale markal valua-Cuoted: 39,83,91,045
Invastmanis purchased and sold during the year
Fariiculars No. af units Faca valua Purchase
{Ra.) cosl {As.]
Frnis Flaxi Dabt Fund-RegularHalf Yerly Dividend) 28423592 10,00 30,08,000.00
ansra Aobeco Incoeme Dividend {income } Fund 47 8848 86 1050 1.5 0H3 000, 5}
Bira Sunhife Income Plus-Cirly Dividend Hainvastment 1.21,833.20 10.00 15,00, 000, 0
Fortls Flaxi Debt Fund-RagularPlan A-Ctry  Dividard 1,00,058.23 10,00 10,00,000.04
Birla Sunlite Dynarmic Bond Fund- Retail-Cirly Dividend
Rainvastment 1,83,826.73 10.00% 200,00,000.0:0
HDFC Shart Tarm Plan-Growth 2,83.019.84 10,08 S0, 00,500,0:
DSF Black Aock Top 100 Equily Fund-Regular
Plan-Grawih 9,551.80 10,00 8,00,000.0¢
HOFC Top 200 Fund-Growh 4. 198.08 10.00 7.00,000,00

ar

Amtll Corp. Limitad




Schedule *G' CURAENT ASSETS, LOANS & ADVANCES

A. Currant Aagaels
1. Sloras and sparé parts
2. Stock in trade
(a] Raw malerial
(b)) Goods in Transh
[c) Finishaed products
¢y Land & Building-Aealy

3, Sundry debtors (Unsecured)
fal Dus for mors than six months
- Gonsiderad goo
- Congidered doubtful
Lass: Provigion for doubtful debts
(k) CHhers {considerad gond)

4, Cash & bank balances

[a} Cashinhend

{By With Schedulsd banks
[i} In Gurrent Accounts
iy Cther Daposil Accounts
fiit In Margio Momay Account®
[iv) Unclaimed Dividands
{¥} Unclaimad Fref.Shares Redamption
[wi) LInclairmad Fractional Shares entitle mant

A Loang & Advances (Unsecured)
i Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or
for value to ba reciaved
- Considered good
« Considarad doubtiul
Lass: Pravision far doubtiul aovances

& MAT Cradit Entitlement

Total

Motas:

As at A3 at
.03.2010 31022004
(As.} {As.]
B4,79,825 86,35, 109
62,41,510 6500817
23,75.472 20,74.834
53,56, 908 45,22 136
154,080,741 1,74,27 566
5,98.53.954 3,891,650 .88
1,55,1868 147,912
15,290,888 15,80 886
{18,90,588) {15,90,885)
74,688,088 B2 55175
5,43, 241 83,72,188
B 74524 2.57.155
T.23,48,141 2 49,75 353
4,45.20,000 2.81,15010
1,530,348, 311 $8,75,000
27,985,183 28,04 82
12,48,740 12,62 2580
5,680,684 8,26,235
13,54,92 563 £,25,17, 145
8,78,41,812 0.07.55.445
22,393,731 22,33,733
(22,33,133) {22,33,733)
51,158,842 33,535,089
1,00,57,684 9,41,08,544
27,59,47,432 20,3856 739

1. Inwenlotes ars valued as explained in the accounhing policy and ere as per inventery and valuation certified by the

managameant
2. Amount dug lom allicers of (he company © Nil

Maximum amount due frem officara al any 1me duning the year As. 20,000/ (Re_ 1,10 0000
3. * Fixed Deposits pladgad with Banks on account of Margin Menay for issuing Bank Guarantses.

EL]

Amarlr Carp. Linited




Schedule ‘H' CURRENT LIABILITIES & PROVISIONS

A. CURRENTLIAEILITIES

1.

@ omoa LN

Sundry craditors

- Duwes ol micra and small scala enberprices

- Cnihars

Othar liakilities

Interast accrued but nol due

Ungtaimead dividends*

Unclaimed Redsmption Amount ol Praleretcs Shares”
Unclaimed fractional payment

B. PROVISIONS

1.

2
3
4

Proposad dividend
Corporata Tax on Dividand
Gratuity
Laave Encashmant

Totad

{* There is no amount due and auislanding to be credited o Invesior Education and Protection Fund.}

Schedule ‘I'INCREASE /| {DECREASE) IN STOCK

Qpening Stock
Finighad Products

Clozing Stock
Finighed Products

Increase{Decreass) In Stock

An nl As at
31.03.2010 21.03,2009
{Rs.) {As.}
$.06,815 9,90.887
£1,71,6838 84,522,219
2,398,443, 748 1,83,06,487
14,065,938 11,50,118
27,858,153 25,04,002
12,48, 780 12,863,250
5,839,684 B.26 28BS
54,256,463 64,285,462
40,467,355 10,82 174
= 3,75,660
48,493,540 41,88 8508
513,768,013 4,56,68,255
Currani Pravious
yBar Year

(Aa.} [As.)
45,232,134 38,01 695
45,22 136 38,01 605
53.56,908 45,22 136
53,565,305 45,22 136
834,710 720,441
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Schedule ‘J' OTHER INCOME _
" Curtent Previous
Yaur ‘aar
(M) (As.)
Other Income
Interasl racawed (TDS Fig 10,86, 79% (Pravious year As.19,16,1130) 0702188 Bg, 7o 625
Dividend Recaived
-Long ferm Investmants 84,00,005 B7.28, 787
-Current investmants 4,27,27A -
Praolit on =ala of cument invastmenis 2,323,424 28,388
RAent received 848,295 82833
Prafil on sele of assets 5,234 322,801
Profil on sala of raw materials - 56,104 .
Prafit an foreign exchanges flustuahon ar,Eee 7,581
Rovalty on Gagan Brand ! Logo {TDS As.28,68, 790/~ 2,52,54,341 24970, 762
Previoye yaar Bs.31,73,054/)
Sungry balances adjusted 352178 67,432
Provisions mads previous yeara no longer raguired §8,83,379 -
Mizcallanaous regalgs 4,09, 385 587 3585
Yotal 4,90.87.208 4 45 B7 784
Schedule'K’ MATERIAL CONSUMED
Curbent Frevious
your “aar
{Ra.) (A=
Haw Malerlals
Opening Stock ' 2.39..23.733 260,219,084
Purchases/procurementimprovement gxpanses 20,08,42,267 16.85.99.133
2,47, 71,080 18,6020 242
Lazs : Sales/TranslerLoss 18,93,160 -
22,27, 77,890 18,50,20,242
Lazs : Closing Stock 2,06,42.251 2,8%,28, 783
Total 18,91,35, 6529 16.10,51 459
Schedule'l MANUFACTURING EXPENSES
Gurrant Fravious
yoar faar
(Rn.) {Rs.)
Stores, spare paris.chemicals & others 3,49,33,032 3,59,00,801
Power & fusl congsyumad 24T 304TE 254 53.582
Repairs:
Buildings 8,789,879 8,42 023
Machinary 73,33,760 64 49 488
Total 5 AT 12,176 & 84,45 885
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Schedule ‘M’ EMPLOYEES EMOLUMENTS

Salaries, wages, graluity and bonus
Employaes welfara gxpanses
Employer's contribution to provident ford, E.5.L,
and Family Pansion Fund
Toial

Schedule 'N' OTHER EXPENDITURE

Insurance

Rent

Hatas & taxss

Rasearch & Davelopment

Fraight & ¢anage on sales

Selling expenges

Inlerest on term loans

Imterest othets

Payment to audlors

= Audit beas

- Reim. ol sxpenses

= Im olher capacity

Payment to Cirestors for attending  Board Meetings
=As fams

-As fravelling expanses

Loss on sale ol lixed assets

Loss on sale of slores

1085 on sale of invastmenis
Provigions for doubtful debls/advances
Sundry Balances writlen off

Miscellanegus expanses

Total

Currani

Pravious

YoRr Yaar

(Rs.) (Rs.)
206.93,212 2,60,08,981
16,458,824 15,068,711
28,08,201 25 26,225
3,31,48,337 300,411,817
Curreni Pravious
Year Yaar

(PAn.) {As}
3,70,980 3,860,105
11,001,083 11,30,200
2,85,0M 2,72,531
15,578 10,658
38,008,588 38,31,766
88,0442 73,38,538
12,83, 907 10,70.024
84,74,185 77,495,045
78,000 a0.000
50,208 58,525
4%.000 42 500
788,000 420 000

- 1468543 154,741
L MM 1,58.096
# 92 420 11.62.001
72,357 28,25,528

. 1,160,000

4%, 702 51,467

2 50,64, 704 1.81,3B.764
4,78,38,4T7 4,59,51,440
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Schedule 'O NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
A Slgnlficant Accounting Policies

1.

Baals of Praparatlon of FInancial Statements

The Financial statements have been prepared in accordangs with indian Generally Accepted
Accounting Pringiples [“GAAP") under the historical cost ennvantion on agerual basis and are in
accordance with the applicable accounting slandards issued by the Instituie of Chartered
Aceountants of India (ICAl) & prescribed in the Companies {Accounling Standards) Fules, 2008,
Thesa Accounting poticies have been consistently applied, except where a newly issusd accounting
standard is Inltially adopted by the company. Management evaluates the eflecl of accounting

standards issued on a gaing concern basis and ensures that they are adopled as mandaied by
the ICAL

Flxed Assats

(a) Owned Assets
Fixaed assets ara slated al their original cost of acquisition inclusive of inward freight,
duties, taxas and incidental expanses relaling to acquisition and instaltation, adjustsd by

revaluation of land. The cost of assets under installation or under construction plus direct

allocable expenses as at the Balance Sheet date are shown as capital work-in-progress.
(b) Aszzats taken on finance lease

Fixed agssts taken on finance lease are stated at the lower of the fair value of the lease

assets of the present value of minimum lease payments at the incaplion of the laase.
(£} lmangible Agsets and Amortization

Intangible Agsszets & related expenditure are recognized as per criteria spacified in Accounting

Standard-26 an “Irtangible Agsels™ issued by the Institule of Chartered Accountants of

India. The cost of software purchased for internal use or main software comprises its

purchase price, including any impert dulies and other taxes {ather than thos 2 subsaquantly

recoverable by the enterprise fram the taxing authoritios) and any directly altributable

evpenditure on making the software ready 1or its use, Any trade discounts and rebales ara
deducted in arriving at the cost.

The software is amortized over a period of 36 months from the month subsequent to the
manth in which it got activated for usa.

Dapraclatlon

{a} Depreciation is provided al the rales specified in Schedule X1V of the Companies Act, 1955
on the following basis:

- Corporate Cflice Writien Down Value Method

- Armrit Food Unil Straight Line Mathod

{b}  In respect of assets addedidisposad off during the year depreciation is charged on a pro-
rata basis with reference to the month of addilian/dizposal. In the case ot additions, it is
charged for the full month in which additichs took place and in the case of sales up o the
mgnth preceding the date of sale.

{c}  Assets below Hs.5.000/- are deprecialed at the rate of 100%.

{d}  In respect of fixed assets taken on finance lease, when thers is reasenable certainty that
ihe Company will cbtain ownership by the end of the lease tarm, depreciation is provided
in actordance with the policy followed by the Company for gwned assels,

42 amrli Carn, Limited




Impalrmant

The earrylng amount of assats is reviewed at sach balance sheet dats If thars is any indication ot
impairment based an intarnal/external factors. An impairment lose fa recoghizad wharayer the
carrying amount of an asset exceads its recoverable amount. The recoverable amaunt s the
greatar of the assel's net selling price and value in usa. In assessing value in use the estimated
tuture cash flows are discounted Lo Lheir present value at the weightad cost of capital,

Investmeant

Investments are classified into current and long term investments. Investments that are readily
realizable and intended to be held for not more than & year are classifiod a3 current investments.
All other Investments are ¢lassified as long term investments. Currant invasiments ars stated at
the lower of cost and fair value determined on an individual basis. Long term investmants including
interasts in jalnt-vanture companies, are carfed al cost. A provision for diminution in value is
made o recogniza a decling other than temporary in the value of fong term Invastmeants, Profit!
loss on sale of nveslments is computed with reference to their average cost.

Inventories

{a) Raw materials, components, stores, spares and [oose tools are valued at lower of weighte
average cost,

(B Work-in-progress

i} Work-in-progress (other than the property development or construction related} is
valued at cost determined at diferant stages of production which includes related
ovarheads,

{ii Froperty Development and construction-relatad work-in-progress is valued at cost
tll such iime the outcome of the wark cannot be ascertained and thereafter at lower
of cost or net realizable value,

Ich Finished goads are valued at lower of weighted average cost or nel realizable value, In the
case of finished goods, cost is determined by taking materlal, labour and ralated factory
overheads inciuding depraciation and fixed production overheads which are appodionsd
an the basis of normal capacity.

<} Unsold real estate inventory is valued at lower of cost or markel valus
Revenue Aecognition

Revenue is recognized to the extenl that it can be reliable, measured and is appropriate to 1he
sconomic benefils that will flow to the company.

(a) Saleofgoods

Revenue from the sale of goods i recogrized when the significant risks & rewards of
ownarship of the goods ara transferred to 1ha customers and is stated net ol rebatesftrade
discounts. Consignment sales are booked to the extent of consignment sales notes
received fram consigneas.The revenue on sale of residential/commercial plots and
constructad units are recognized on completion and axecution of sale/conveyance deeds
and ah reasonable expectation of collection of the sale consideration from the customer,
The estirmates relating (o sale value, estimated cost ete., are ravised and updated periodically
by the management and necessary adjustments are made in the current year's account.

(b} Royaliies and Income frem services

Incorme from rovally & services rendered is booked on acenual basis in accordance with
the terms of the royalty agreementsiarrangements with the concernad paries.

43 Amrit Caro. Umitad




{c)

()

Interest

Interest is recognized on a time proportion basis in accordance with agrasmant taking
into socount the amount outstanding and the rate applicabla,
Dividend

Dividend income s recognized if the right to recaive the payment iz established by Lha
Balance Sheet date.

Relirement and Dther Employes Beneflis

{a)

]

{c)

Short Term Employes Benefiis

All empioyse benefits falling due wholly within twalve months of rendeting the service are
vlassified as short term employee banefits, The benefits like salaries, wages, shot term
compensated zhsences atc. and the sxpected cost of borus, ex-gratia etz. are recognized
In the pericd in which tha smployee renders the related servica.

Thare are na other encashable short-term benefis.
Post-Employmant Benafles

() Deflned Contributlon Plans: The Stats governed grovident fund schemea, amployes
slahg insurance scheme and amployee pansion scheme are defined eontribution
plans. The conlribution paid/payable under the schemes is récognized during the
peniad in which the employes renders tha rotated sanvice,

(i} Dafined Benefll Plans: The employaes gratuity fund schems and providant fund
scheme managed by trusl gre defined benafit plans,

{a} Inthe case of gratuity liability, the present value of the obligation under such
defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation uzing the
prejacted wnit credit method, which recognizes aach period of service as giving
rise 10 additions| unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit
separataly to build up the final obligatlar.

The obligation is measurad at the present value of the estimated future tash
flows. The discount rates used for determining the prasent value of the obligation
under defined bensfit plan, is based on the market yields on Government
securities as at the balance sheet date, having maturity periods approximating
to the larms of related obligations.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in the Profit & Loss
Account.

{b} Inthe case of provident iund administered by the Trust constituled by the Company,
the Company makes manthly centributions as = fixed pereantage of basic pay of
cartain specitied employees to the Fund every month. The interest credited to the
account of the employees is adjustad on annual basis to canform to the nlerest
rate nolified by the Govt. for the Employees Provident Fund. The Company has an
obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, betwssn the return on investrnant of
the Trust and the notified interest rate. Pending the issuance of the quidance
nate from the Actuarial Socigty of india, the Actuary has expressed his inability to
rellably measure the provident fune liability. There is no deficit in the Fund.

Long Term Employee Banalits

Entitlemnents Lo annuai leave, casual leave and sick leave are recognized when they accrue
12 the employees. Sick leave and easyal leave can only be availed whilz samed leave can
eithar be avaled or encashed subject to restriction on the messimurm number of accumulation
of lsaves, The Company determines the liability for such accumulated leaves using the
projected unit credit methad with actuarial valuation being carrigd out &t sach Balance
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10.

Sheet date in the similar mannear a5 in the case of defined banedit plans as maniioned
in {b} (i} above. .

{if)  The other staft bonefit schemes will be provided according 1o respactive laws in respect
of employees as and when these will be applicable on company.

Taxes on lncoma

The current charge for Income Tax |5 ascertalngd on the bagis of assessable profits computed
in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax act, 1961.

Minimurm Alternative Tax ("MAT™) paid it aceordancs with the tax laws, which gives rise to future
sconcmic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income Lax hakility, is considéred as an
agsal if there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal tax n tuture. MAT Cradit
anlitlement can be carried forward and ulilized Tor a peried of saven years from tha year in which
it is availed. Accordingly, It is recognized as an assat in the balance sheet when it is probable
that ihe future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the company and the azset can be
maasurad reliadly.

Datarrad kax is recognized subject 1o the consideration of prudence, on timing differences,
baing the difference talwaen taxable incomes and accounting incoma that originate in one
period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsaguent pericds. Detarred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the fulure tax consequences attibyutable o timing ditferences
that result batwean taxable profits and accounting profiis. Deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the tax rates and tax laws thal have bean enacted or substantively enacled
by the balance sheet date. The effect on deferred tax agsets and liabilities o & change in tax
rates is recognized in the period that includes Lhe anactment dals. Defsmsed tax assets on
timing difference are recognized only if there iz & reagonable certainly that sufficient future
taxable income will ba available against which such deferrad tax assets can be realized.
However, deterred tax assets on the timing differances when unabsorbed depreclation and
losses carned forward axist, are recognized only to the extent that 1here is virtual cartainly that
suMlciant future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax can be realized.
Defarred tax assats are raasgassad for tha appropriateness of thair respective carrying values
at sach balance sheat date.

Laasaa

{ik Asasts acquired urdder lgases whare the Company has substantially all the risks and
rawards of ownership areg classifiad a5 finance leases. Such assets are capitalized at
the incaption of the laase at the lower of tha Tair value or the present value of minirnum
lease payments and a llabllity |5 created tar an sgquivalent amount. Each lease rantal
paid is allocated betwash tha llablity and the intarasl cost, so as to obtain a constant
pericdic rale of nterest on the outstanding liability for sach peanod.

(i}  Assets taken on lease under which lassor efleclively retains all significant risks & rawards
of ownership have been ciassified as operating leass. Lease payments made under
oparating lease are recognized as expense in the profil & loss account on straight ling
basls pver tha primary term of the lease as mentioned in the lease agraement on
acerual basis.

iy  Assats glven under a finance lgase are recognized as raceivable at an amount equal lo
the net invastmeant in tha lease. Lease income is recognized over the period of the lease
so a8 to ylald a conslant rata of return pn the net investment in the lsase,

(iv)  Assals leased oul undar oparating leases are capitalized, Rental income is recognized
on accrual basis ovar the leasa term.
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12.

13.

14,

15.
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{v} Initial direct costs ralating to assets given on linance leases are charged to the Profit
and Loss Account.

Research and Developmant

Revenue expendiure on research and development is charged under respective heads of
account in the year In which it is incurred. Capltal expendilure on research and development is
included as part of fixed assets and depreciated on tha same basis as othar flxed assots.

Provisions and Contingencies

Frovisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past
evantg, for which it is probable that an outflow of resourcas embodying economic benefits will
be required lo setlie are reviewed regularly and are adjusted where necessary to reflsct the
currert best estimates of the obligation. Where the Company expects a provision to be
reimburaed, the reimbursement is recognized as a saparate Asset, only when such
reimbursament is virtually certain. Conlingent Liabilities are disclosed after an evaluation of
the facts and lagal aspects of the matters involved, Conlingant Asaets are neither recognizad,
nor disclosed. Provigions, Contingent Liabililes and Contingent Assets are reviewsd at each
Balance Sheet date.

Uae of Estimates

The preparation of the financial staterments in conformity with GAAP reguires the managemant
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported balances of assats and liabilities
and digclosures relating ke contingent assets and Ilabllitles as at the date of tha financial
slatamants and reported amounts of income and expenses during the peried. Examples of
such astimates inciude provisions for doubtful debts, future obligations under employes
ratirament banefit plans, income tax, past-sales customer suppen and the usaful livas of fixed
assets and Intangible assets. Actual results could differ from those eglimated. Any revision of
accounting estimates is recognized prospactivély in the current and futurg periods.

Foreign Currency Transaction

Foreign axchange transactions are recorded at the rates of exchange pravailing an the dates of
the respective transactions. Exchange differences ara recorded in the profil & loss account
when the amount is actually paid on import of geods are converted into Indian Rupees.
Accordingly, exchange differences arsing on foreign exchange difterances settlad during the
perigd ara recognized in the profit and loss account of tha period,

Monatary current assets and monalary current liabilities that are denominated in toraign currency
ara translated at the exchange rale pravalen at the dale of the balance sheet. The resuling
diferancs is also recorded in the profit & loss account.

Bommowlng Costa

Berrowing costs that are atiributabla 10 the acquisition, construction of production of a gualifying
asse! are capitallzed as part of cost of such asset till such time as the asssl is ready for its
intended use or sale. A gualifying asset is an asget thal necessarily requires a substantial
period of time 1o gat ready for its intended use or sala. All other borrowing costs are recognized
as an gxpense in the parlod in which they are incurred.

Earnings par Share

In datermining eamings per shara, the Company considers the net profit after lax and includes
the post-tax effect of any extraondinary / exceptional item. The number of sharas used in
compuling basic earnings per share is the weighted average number of shares oulstanding
during the pericd. The numbet of shargs used in computing diluted earnings per share comprisa
the weighted average shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share, and also tha
weighted avarage number of equily sharas that could have been issuad on the conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares.
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18.

148,

The daiails are stated in the financial notes balow which are not reproduced here. There is no
diluted Eaming per Shars as thera are Ao dilutive potential eguity shares.

Segmant Accouniing

The Campany has three primary segments namely Food, Real Estate and Servicas.

(a) Segmentaccounting policies
HSegment accounting policies are in line with the accounting policies of the Company. In
addition, the lellowing specilic accounting policies have been followed for sagment
reporting -
tij Sagment revenue includes sales and othar income direcily identifiable with/allecable

to the segment including intar-segment revenue.

{it Expenses that are directhy identifiable with/allocable to segments are considsred for
determining the sagment rasult. Expenses which ratate to the Company as a whole
and not allocable to segments are included under “Un-allocable Expenditure”,

{lli} Income which relates to the Company as a whaole and not allocable 1o gegments is
included in “Un-allocabla \ncome”™

{iv) Segment rasuit includes marglns on intar-segment capital jobs, which are reducad
in arriving at the profll before tax of the Company.

v} Segment assets and liabilities Include thosa directly identifiable with the respeciive
segmants. Un-allocable assats and liabilities reprasant the assets and liahillties
that relate to the Company as & whole and not aliocable to any segmaent. Un-allocable
assels mainly comprise Deposits with Banks, Margin Money, Bank Balances,
Invesiments & Deferred Tax Assets io the portfolio of the Company's core/thrust
areas of business such as infrastructure development, Un-allocahl# liabilities include
mainly Share Capital, Aeserves & Surplus, Public Daposits, Provision for tax & Interest
Payable on Loans.

(b} Segment transactions

Segment transactions with other business segmants are accounted on the basis of cost
to the segment concernad.

Cash Flow Statemant

Cash flows are reported using the indiract methed, whareby net profit before tax is adjusted tor
the effects of transaclions of 4 non-cash naiure and any deferrals or accruals of past or tuture
cash raceipls or paymants, The cash llows from ragular revenus genarating, investing and
financing activiies of the Company are segregated. The Cash Flow statement is separataly
attachad with the Financial Staternants of the company,

Accaunting far Interast In Jolnt Yenture

interast in Jolnt veniurs companias is accountad as follows:-

(i) Income on investments is recognized when the right to receive the same is established.

{it  'nwestmant in such Jaint Ventures is cammed at cost aher providing for any permanent
diminution value,
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Notes
1.

Eslimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed an capital acecount and nat provided for
as at 31* March, 2010 armounied 1o Rs, 1240000 (Rs. 9,25,000/-).

Caontingent Liabllity
{As.lacs)
2009-10 2008-09

{(a)  Bank Suaranige givan 10 the Excise Deptt. against refund of
gucise o Amrit Foad Division as per order dated 02.02.2009
of the hon'ble Supreme Coud of India H.63 91.63

{b}  Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 7.48 5.9

The Company promoted in collaboration with M/s Ligvljay Heal Estate Developers (P} Lid., New
Delhi a joint venture company {hereinafter referred 1o as ‘JV Company') under the name & shyle of
“Amrit Digwijay Infra-Test (P Ltd." for developing a housing projact at Dehradun. The compay
invested a sum of As. 49 500/ 1owarnds equity and provided RAs 85 00,000+~ a5 unsecured loan
The ¥ Compary has alrsady acquired and registered in its name a pertion of tha land. 1 is tfacing
difficultios in acquiring the balance land. Eforts are baling made to sell the land already acquirad
and apply the proceeds in another praject in Dehradun or another suitable location. Pursuant ko
Accounting Standard (A5 27 — Financial Reparting o interest In Joint Venture, the disclosures
redating to tha joint-venturs viz., Amrit Oigvijay Infra-Tach Pvt. L1d. are as follows:

{a}  The proportion of interest of the Company in the JV is by way of equal equity participation
with M/s Digvijay Real Extate Deveiopars Pvt. Lid.: :

b} The aggregate amount of assets, ligbilitias, income and expenses retlating to tha
Company's inlerest in Lhe J¥ as on 319 Mareh, 2010 is as follows:

(Figuras in Rupeas)

2009-10 2008-03

1. Assals
- Fixed Assats 75,44,010 75,35 800
- Currant Assats 67,500 5.68,251
2. Liabillties :
- Currant Liabilltiss 11,76,406 11.43,508
- Unsacured Loan B5,00,000 80,00 000
A, Ravenue 9,582 -
4. Expenszas 10,32,736 8,56,930

{cb  The Company's share of capital commitment in the JV as on 317 March, 2010 is
As. Nil lacs (previous year As. 198,78 lacs),

{d}  The Company's share of contingent liakilities of tha JV as on 31 March, 2010 is Nil
(previous year Mit).

e} There was no cantingent liability culstanding as on 31* March, 2010 in relation e tha
Company's irferest in the JY alongwith the co-venturar,

The Auditors have issued lettars of sonfirmation in duplicate to all debtors, craditors, depositors
& others for confirming their balances. Balante confirmations have besen recaived from major

an Amrit Corp. Umlvgd




parties, except some paries whose culstandings are ned matarial and some of whom are in
dispute and/or under litigation with the Company. The balances of such parties have been
incorporated in the financial statements at the value as per the bocks of account, The company,
to the exteni slated, has considerad tham as goed and necesgary provisions have been made in
respect of deblorsfadvances under fitigation and where recovery is congidered doubtful,

The Sombay Municipal Gorporation (BMC) throwgh the Spacial Land Acguisition Oficer
had acquired treehold land belonging to the campany adrmeasuring 3, B57.06% sq.mirs. lor
As.5.61.8927/-. The company had filed a petition in the Hon'ble Bombay High Court for enhancement
of compensation. By a judgement dated 24" Qectaber, 1994, the Bombay High Gourt enhanced
the compensation, including interest, by Re.31,27, 603 with a direclion to pay furthar interest
from 15" Oclober, 1884 till the actual date of payment. Against the judgement by a Single Judge,
the BMC filed an appeal before the Division Bench of the High Court for stay and vide crder dated
21" November, 1995 the exaeculion and operation of the judgement dated 24* QOctober, 1994 was
stayed on the condition thal BMC depasils the decretal ameount with upte date interest amounting
to As.42,75,769.65 with tha Court which the company was allowed o withdraw after furnishing a
scivent security, Rs.32,08,689.65 was received by the Company on 8" January, 16989 and the
balance on account of interest accrued thergon amounting to Rs.10,66.880/ (including TOS)
was received on 15.03.2000 and these have been accounied for in the books of account for the
relevant period. The appeal by BMC was finally disposed off by the Division Bench of the Bombay
High Court vide order dated 29 April, 2004, which has modified the order of the Single Judge and
reduced the compensalian ko Rs.21,01,271.97 as against the amount of Rs. 32 08 883 85 decraed
by the Single Judga. The Gompany has filed an SLP bsfore the Hon'ble Suprema Cour of India
against the order as well as a stay application against the deposit of the diffarantial amount of
Rs5.11,07 617 68 together with inlerest @ 12% thereon from 29" January, 1999 The appeal came
up for hearing on 25" Nowvermnber, 2004 and the Hon'ble Supreme Courl of India was pleased o
issue a Notice on tha SLP as wsll as on the inlerim stay application. Thera has been no further
progress in this matter during the year.

Milk products, namely, soft serve mix and milk shake mix manufactured by Amnt Food Division
and supplied to McDonald's restaurants had bean heid to be excisable products by the
Caormmissloner, Central Excise, Meerut. On appesl, the CEGAT [now CESTAT} confirmed the
order passed by the Commissioner. The Cempany filed an appesl against the CESTAT's oider
betgre the Hon'ble Supreme Court of India enallenging the excisability of these products. The
Horm'tile Supreme Court white setting-aside Lhe order of CESTAT in so far as it pertained 1o
derarmination of the classification of tha alorezaid products, remanded the mabter back to CESTAT
for the purpose ot disposing of the same on merit. The GESTAT after detailed arguments passed
an ordar dated 26" March, 2006 holding inter-alia thal the products in guestion were classifiable
under Chapter 4 heading 04.04 of the Cantral Excise Act having 'nif rate of duty and not under
Chapler 1% haading 19.01.19, as contended by the Excigs Department. The CESTAT has, thus,
sel-aslde the order passed by the Commissioner impasing duty on the said products and the
damands raised by the Excise Deptt. heve also baen set-aside with consequential reliel. The
Excize Departmerl has, however filed an appesl before the Hor'ble Supreme Court against the
order of CESTAT which has besn admittad. In the maantime, Amrit Food filed appropriate
application{s) seeking refund of 1he duty paid in the past,

On an application for slay filed by the Excise Deptt., the hom'ble Supreme Courl vide ordar dated
2.2.2009 allowed the Company refund of Fs.B1 63,301/~ subject to the Company furnishing bank
guarantes for the same. In compliance of the order of the hon'ble Suprame Court, tha Company
submitied the requisite [.ank guarantee to the Excise Deptt. and has received rafund of

&9 Amtht Corn. Limited




R=.91.63,320H/- from the Excise Deph. on (H.06.2008. The Company is aiso antitled to interesl
on the refund amount as applicabls under the Central Excise ActRules, which is under appeal
bafore CESTAT. Mecessary adjustmeant entries for the retundf imarest will be passed upon
adjudication of the appeal by the hon'ble Supreme Court,

The Company has ameounts due t¢ suppliers under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Developmem Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) as at 31.03.2010. The disciosure pursuant to the said A1
is a5 under:

(a)
()

(e}
(d)

{a)

M

(g

Mot

The principal amount remaining unpatd 10 any supglier as at
the &nd of aach accounting year

The interesl due remaining unpaid 1o any supplier as at the
end of gach accounting year '

Tha amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18

Armgunts of the payment made to the suppfier beyond the
appointad day during each accounting year

The armcunt of intarest due and payable for the pariod of delay
in making paymenl {which have been paid but beyond the
appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest
specified onder this Act

The amoun of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the
and of sach accounting year

The amount af further interest remaining dug and payable
oven in the succaading years, until such dala when the
interest dugs as above are actually paid 1o 1he amall
enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible sxpanditure under section 23.

2009-10

2008-09

9,06,616

21,763
N

T1,65,793

21,765

21,765

9.90.687

7923
NIL

62,893,243

7523

¥5.231

The inlormation has bean given in respect of such vendors who could be identified as
“Micre and Small” snterprises on the basis of inlormation available with the Company.

RAelated Party Disclosure

A

Aelated Partles

{ii Key Managemeni Personnel : Mr.N.K.Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Chrector
. MrA.K.Bajaj, Managing Director

(i) Asgsociatea Companies

M/s ABC Fapar Lid. (ABC Paper)

Mfas Amrit Banaspati Co. Ltd. {ABCL)
Mis Amrit Agro Industries Ld. {AAIL)
Mz Amrit Learning Lid. (ALL}

M/ Amrit Digvijay Infra-Tech PviLid. (ADIPL)




B. Transaclions with Retated Parties

{Rs. In lacs)
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a. Segment information for the year ended 31" March, 2010
Business Sagments

(@)

nar

Bsd

494

iR o1

Bassd on the guiding principles given in Aceounting Standard AS-17 "Segment Reporting”
issuad by the Institute of Chartered Accountants ¢f India, the Company's business
gagrnents include Milk/Milk products {manufacture of dairy milk & milk producis), Reaal
Estate & Services.

L)

Geographical Segments

Since the Company's activities/operations are within the country and considering the
nature of producis it deals in, the risks and retums are the same and as such, there is

only one geographical segment.

dmrit Corn. Lineited




{t) Segment Accountlng Policles

In addition 1o signiticant accounling policies applicatils to the business segments, the
acequriting policies in ralation to segment accounting are as under:

il Segment revanys and expenses
The revenua and expenses of sagments are directly attributable to the sagments.
(it}  Segmeant assets and labilities

Segment assets include ail uperating assets used by a segment and consisl
principally of operating cash, dablors, inventoties and fixed assets net of allowances
and provistons which are reported as direct offsets in the balance shest, Segment
liabilities include all oparating liabillies and consist principally of creditors and acorued
liabilities. Segment assets do not include income tax assels and interest bearing
assets. Segment liahilities do not include interest bearing liabilities and incoma-lax

liabilities.
[A=. in laca)

Partculara MMM Producie Fotrel Edrbijm Trvicea Toimd

200010 206D 2008-10 s 2008-10 | 2COB<H | 200810 ] 200809
Expéf | st InCarmm from sarvices R ] Ak ) 02 144 12 S0 | X | 357aE0 | 310TEE
b irkowma LF ] 10.48 - o 2580 5. o b 6.
Tirted ;v ERECT ) 27077 "y 14588 49038 | 5854 | e | kaoson
Sipgmens ragiiy GEB 10737 oM R ikes 18647 T J51.16
Linglkoca bl icumie (rar ol aHpartaes) - - . 1L EC08
Imlewssl mwume R &0
Irriprws! mapanaes {107.3T) | {34 661
Freoitl babore-odta- Grnary imm & 1o F- X B ]
Eatra-unlnmry incoma -
Profi befare - o] 1
Presaion {or meplion 1.4 1M
FProd: attar tax 25T 27705
Segmant knaets 1,081 55 1181 . THEEL 1,108 W6 | 29 | 2B AE
Unalhsczbe sty 174723 | 1,726
Sarg e | mb ihea E X ] 320 EET) 1775 T2 47 | 1. 20788 | 1009 4
Lirall o ad cad lladxliling L5AY | 356325
Capeeh| s e 00 1482 {298 40} o0 4 | {202,000 165G
Drepareciation & gmorizatan “i 3.ea T 1947 114m 15106
1o~ b i B recoes. it BT Chpiraciaion & Amar(Zakean o 157 - O i7.1] 16l
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10. Flxed Asaets acquired under finance leass:

Disclosure In respect of assets taken on lease under Acoouring Standard AS

Leases" issued by the Institute of Charterag Accountanis of India.

{1} General description of the finance leass

The Company has antered Intg finance lease

terms and cenditions of such leases arg as _
- Renewal lor a further period an such terms and conditions as m

upan between lessor and tha COmpany,

- Assals to be purchased by the company or

and of the lease tom.

Vehicles in Fixad Assels Schadule 'E' - include assets acquired under

= 19 “*Accounting for

arrangements for vehicles. Some of the significant

tollows:

amangements, the details of which are diven balow"

ay be mutually agread

the nominee appointed by the company at the

finance leasa

Particulars 2009-10 2008-08
{Ra.} (Rs.}
Carrying amount as an 31» March, 2010
Grass book value as at the beginning of the vear 84, 53,668 60,458 BOA
Less: Accumulated Depraciation 17,78,492 19.71,510
Met book valus 86,85,176 40,77 .388
Additions during tha year 26,41,006 53,51,448
! Depreciation for the year on such ansats 18,26,023 17,356,843 J
2040%-10 2008-08
Particuiars Total Firlure Present | Total Future Prasant
finanes | of minimum finance| of minimum
chargas LT charges leass
Payments Paymants
a1 the &l thy
Balanca Balance
shest dats shagt dale
Total minimum 47 08,735 4.31,038 22,777,897 | 5542 Fo2 670,252 am 72210
lsagy paymente
al the Balance
Shest date
Mot later than Mn.098M8 335,734 27.70,042 | 28,73 352 A4.72,B05] 23.99.547
one year
Latar than onp 13,99.056 05,304 15,00,7558 | 26,58 250 188,487 2472783
yaar but nal larer
Ihan flve years
Latar than - - . - .
live years

Ametll Carw. Lhmliad




1.

Employes Benafits:
{a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Campany has recognized the coniribuion/abitty In the Profit & Loss Account for the

financial yaar 2009-10.

b} Dofined Benetit Plans & Cther Loy Term Benefits:

Tha following disclosures are macle in accordance with AS 16 (Revised) periaining to
Definad Benefit Plans and Other Long Tarm Banefits:

griiaed bn Bak Svimirt
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12.  The delerred tax asset/{llabilhy) comprises the following:
The Company estimates the deferred 1ax charge / {credit) using the applicable rate of taxation
based on the impact of timing differences between financial statements and estimated taxable
incomse for the current periad. The movemsnt of provision for defermed 1ax is given below:
(As. in lacs)
Provislon for Daderred Tax Opening | Charge during Cradit Cloging as
Balancs the yoar | during the Year | at 31.03,2010
Timing difference batwoan
kooks and fax depraciation (100.67) (1.95) - {102.62)
Unabsorbed lossas 1.20 (1.209 - -
Provision for doubtful debts 13.00 - S 13.00
Disallowances w's 43-B 15.91 - 2.20 17.581
Restructunng Expsnses 1.35 (0.67} - .G8
Total {69 81} {3.82) 2.20 (71.43)
13.  Earning per shars
(Fig. in Rupsss)
2008-09
Profit after {axation as per profit & loss Account 277,895,026
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 321323
Basic and diluted earnings per share in rupes
{face value-Pa.105 per shamn) including exira-ordinary incoma " 8.65
14.  The current tax liability has been shown net of MAT credit enttlemeant of As. 37.00 lacs.
15. Information pursuani to clause 32 of tha listing agrasment with stock sxchanges

= Loans and advances in the nature of loans
to associates/companies in which Directors are

interested:

ASC Paper Lid.

Amrit Digvijay Infra-Tech Pvt.Lid.

[As. in lacs)
. 20810 2008-09
v - 100,00
' SL00 80.00
865,80 180.00

- The above loans/advances ara in the nature ot unsecured loans, interest bearing and
repayabde as per terms of agreemants with the parties congarnad,

Rmrk Lavm. UenHad




16. Managerial/Dirsciors’ Remunsmtion

{a) Remuneration paid to tha Managing Director
- Salary
- Contribution to Provident & Superannuatton Fung
- Perguisites
- Commission

b} Diraclors' Sitting Faes
Total

fFig. in Rupsass)

T S, 2008-09

17,770,000
2, 12,400
12.24, 219

Y2 82981 5206719
L 708,000 4,20,000
! T 3626719

The eforesaid remuneration 1o the Managing Cirector is the minimum remuneration as approved
by the shareholders, The remuneration paid to Managing Director ia in accordance with Schegule

XlIl of tha Companias Act, 1956.

17. The previcus year's figuras have been regroupedire-arrangad, wharsver necessary, ¥ make

tham comparable with the figures for the current year

Schedule P” ADDITIONAL INFORMATION UNDER PARAGRAPHS 3&4 OF PART 2 OF SCHEDULE

VI OF THE COMPANIES ACT,1956 FORMING PART OF PROFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT FOR

THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2010
DETAILS OF CAPAGITIES, PRODUCTION, STOCKS & SALES

Capacity & Praductlon

Qty. CAFACITY FARODUCTION
Unit Licangad Ingralleg® Actual
314310 30308 N.03.10 31.03.089 31.0310 ;0309
LIHT Dalry htilk KL 33,000 33,000 24,000 24,000 8,567 T.606
Par ¥anr Par Year Par Yaar Fer Yaar

“Tha installed capacily |a a8 par cartilicale givan by the factory manager,

Amrit Cors. Limbtad
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4,

Stocks of Finlshed Products & Sales

{Ps. in 1acs)
Siereh of Fidshed Products Swules Adjuatmemt
Cpaning Closing Qpaniing Closing
01 .04 2008 H.03.10 01.04 2008 A RvE N -] 31.03.10 RN
Qy. ek 2y, Value iy, Vahie Qly. Yalue Oty Vaha Ory. Vel
KL Ra. KL Re. KL A3, KL Ra. KL Rs. KL Pa.
LUMT Dary Wil 33 4520 14 05T 120 39z 133 451 BM1 LT THIE 278430
Qlbars & g 23,12 FLER
DETAILS OF RAW MATERIALS CONSUMED
Quantity consumed (KL) Value (As.In lacs)
2005-10 2008-00 Hie-10 2008-09
il Mk (KL) 8,7 7877 1,973 1,550.19
Othars - - 1815 B0.73
i Storgsapare ports chamicals & othars
aj Conlainers - - - -
k) Others - - 345.33 3580
VALUE OF MATERIALS CONSUMED
200610 2008-00 {Fs. in lacs)
Indigerous  “age  Mmporisd  Wage Totwl Tagd  Indgerdis Hagn  Imgeatld g Tod  wege
1 Mk (KL & ohere 708370 SN »x 1. 190 100.00 181 B2 K0 . - 1HDBE W0DE
H]  Siones,spesd pana,
chemicala & Gihads ST 10000 = = el 100 Ao HEMD . - FEM 10
FOREIGN EXCHAMNGE EARMING AND OGUTGO
(A%, in lacs)
2008- 10 2008-0%
A Valus of Imporia on CIF baais
Capitai Goods (0L ) =
Finishad Products n .
Raw Materials k¥ o4 15.54
SparasStores 1697 10.36

B. Earninga In Foreign Exchange
Exporta on FOB basis
{thers {fraight, insurance aic.)
Conguhancy

€. Expsnditure in Forslgn Exchangs
Travalfing
Dihere

Toval

14.22

4294

7
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BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE
{Pursuant to Part IV of Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956)

| REGISTRATION DETAHS
Registration No. LTS
State Code 20
Balance Sheet Date 31" March, 2010
Aupees Q00
N CAPITAL RAISED DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MAFCH, 2010
Pubiic I1ssue R
FRight lasue -
Bonus lssue .
Private Placament -
R POSITION OF MOBILISATION AND DEVELOPMENT OF FUNDS AS AT 315T MARCH, 2010
Total Liakilitles 419,810
Total Asasts 419,810
Sources of Funds
Faid-up Caphal CERTIFIED TRUE COPY 32,132
Heserves and surplus 2.68.503
Secured Loans 20,355
Unsecured Loans 1.677
Deferred Tax Liability 7,343
Total For AMRIT CQRP. LIMIT 419,810
Application of Fuhds .
Net fixad assets 86,221
Investmants Compa ecretary 1,11,019
Het currant assets 222,570
Totel 4.1 BIB1 0
N PERFCAMANCE OF THE COMPANY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2010
i} Tumgver (saie of the products/services and other income) 385,536
i) Tetal sxpenditure 3,55 968
iiiy Profit bafora tax 28,570
iv) Profit after tax 25 956
v) Earning per share (see rule 2) {lace value of Rs. 104-) a.0a
i) Dividend rate( % ) 20%
¥ PRODUCTS OF THE COMPANY
Generic name of principal products/services of the company :
ltemn code No. Product description
40120.00 Dairy milk
NOTE:

The above particulars should be read along with the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2040, the Profit & Loss
Account for the financial year ended on that date and the Schedules farming part thereof.

Amrit Cavs. Limbind
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